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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BRBERZMARAE (BT GEM 2458

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A RN

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the first listed beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has ten beauty and slimming centres with
six in Hong Kong, one in Macau and three in Mainland China
including one in Beijing, one in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen.
All these centers are under two brand names “Sau San Tong”
(original brand of the Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015). All
these centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty
and slimming services, health management and anti-ageing
treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective treatments
and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes enable
customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body
shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services, the Group was proud to
receive “The Most Outstanding Achievement Brand of Asia Beauty
& Health Award” from International Beauty and Health Brand
Festival, Asia and is honoured to be the “Caring Company” for 10
consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-Il and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and
with the additions of international famous brands, the growth of
turnover as well as the number of distribution points is impressive.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A &N

In recent years, the Group realized that e-Commerce is flourishing
but the beauty and slimming market is still untapped, the business
potential is unpredictable. Therefore, the Group has invested in
developing an one-stop online booking platform at www.beautyu.com
since 2012 to pave the way for entering into the e-Commerce new
Era.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business, franchise co-operation business and
e-Commerce business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the
best-in-class services to our customers.

In order to fully utilise the idle funds of the Group, the Group has
expanded in several new business segments in recent years.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the
Company.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 2 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium sized
corporations which include both listed and non-listed corporations
and businessmen in various industries. For secured loans, the
Group’s targeted corporations and individuals are those with
properties for mortgage. This money lending business will diversify
the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue base in
order to enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the
overall interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

REBEMBERRE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other revenue and net income
Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative
exXpenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of losses of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-\E —E+F —ERF —T-8F “E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FEL FEL
2,607,987 2,228,417 1,693,550 1,548,256 1,362,916
(2,362,517) (1,958,591) (1509,127) (1,335,614) (1,189,750)
245,470 269,826 184,423 212,642 173,166
6,520 7,022 21,890 18,225 19,355
(97,948) (93,875) (83,783) (80,620) (85,050)
(116,783) (116,120) (108,377) (97,964) (85,223)
37,259 66,853 19,153 52,283 22,248
(4,382) (4,157) (3,165) (4,424) (3,647)

= - - (2,047) (3,669)

32,877 62,696 15,988 45,812 14,932
(13,771) (25,143) (11,400) (7,818) (7,287)
19,106 37,553 4,588 37,994 7,645
173,784 171,231 108,834 34,809 41,715
1,152,906 1,122,110 683,855 560,996 368,899
331,503 (355,758) (217,402) (169,054) (162,776)
821,403 766,352 466,453 391,942 206,123
(4,163) (3,761) (22,504) (41,456) (70,078)
991,024 933,822 552,783 385,295 177,760
960,152 921,458 537,907 366,541 153,400
30,872 12,364 14,876 18,754 24,360
991,024 933,822 552,783 385,205 177,760
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HRH

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Year Under Review”) to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of
Directors (the “Board”).

2018 was a year of recovery for the Group and the entire retail
and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The growth in gross domestic
production was 6.8% in the PRC and 3.8% in Hong Kong. In
addition, stock markets in Hong Kong continued to recover.
As a result, the revenue and performance of the beauty and
slimming business continued to recover. The local financial market
also performed very well which contributed to the performance
of the Group’s securities investments business. As a result of
the continued growth of the economy in China, the product
distribution business of the Group in China managed to attain a
significant growth.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the Group
has also proactively identified different opportunities of acquisitions
and development. In November 2017, the Group has completed
acquisition of a residential property in Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EFE#H &

Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 18
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, Sau San Tong has long been
upholding its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’
needs in a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner,
abiding by industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau
San Tong has been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by
side with its customers! Establishing the market leading position
is a hard-earned achievement. | believe the new management
team will continue to adhere to the Group’s principles, conduct
and service attitude while introducing new elements by launching
innovative treatments and products, leading Sau San Tong and
its customers to continue the legends of beauty. On top of
expanding business, the management team puts equal emphasis
on corporate governance, risk management and social services.
These corporate social responsibilities are of utmost importance
to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development in the long run. In
the effort to build a harmonious society and a prosperous future,
Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates its care for the
community, supports various welfare activities and sets up a
voluntary team to participate in various voluntary services. For a
number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has been awarded
the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our continuous care
and support to the society.

Looking ahead into 2018, Hong Kong and the PRC economy
and retail business is expected to continue its growth. Although
the increase in interest rate in United States may ultimately led
to increase in Hong Kong interest rate which may have negative
impact on consumer confidence in Hong Kong, the Group will
strive to capture any business opportunities available. We will
continue to examine the situation carefully and adjust the Group’s
development and investment strategies in the effort of diversifying
its business, which in turn will enable us to respond to the ever-
changing market environment and maximise the interests of the
Group and our shareholders as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HRH

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, my fellow members in the Board and our
hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers, business
partners and other stakeholders for their valuable contributions
and strong support for the Group. | would also like to take this
opportunity to welcome our new members, Mr. Chan Ka Kin, an
executive director of the Company in the Year Under Review. With
our persistent dedication and relentless efforts, | am confident
that the Group will be able to overcome any obstacle ahead and
adhere to its vision and mission to bring rewarding returns to all
shareholders.

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Honorary Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018

K& AREERR EFSEEE - TS
EFZERET  REEE  EBBHLEME
NE-BHAKREFLZ2EETMAREIX
B AABUBUARDRER - AATRH LHE U
BEBORMZHKE KRB ZHITESR—
RREELE - AANRE  BEBRERAETE
Zh AEEERRBET —([AHERKRSE
BRRED  RERRRGEREEDR -

KETE
REMEL

g —E-/\FRA-TAA

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA A

Annual Report 2017/18 &£ EH &



are Centre

Medical 5kin




MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT EE[E#HE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Group for year ended 31 March 2018.

Financial Review

In respect of the financial performance during the Year Under
Review, the Group’s overall turnover increased from approximately
HK$2,228,417,000 (including revenues from securities investments
of HK$85,112,000) in the previous year to approximately
HK$2,607,987,000 (including revenues from securities investments
of HK$62,142,000) in the Year Under Review, representing a
17.0% increase.

Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under Review was
approximately HK$245,470,000, with a decrease of approximately
HK$24,356,000 as compared with approximately HK$269,826,000
for the same period last year. The increase in overall turnover
was mainly due to an increase in revenue from the product
distribution business in China which is partly offset by decrease
in revenue from the securities investments. Revenue from
the product distribution business in China increased from
approximately HK$2,024,349,000 of last year to approximately
HK$2,422,133,000 of the Year Under Review. Revenue
from securities investments decreased from approximately
HK$85,112,000 of last year to approximately HK$62,142,000 of
the Year Under Review. During the Year Under Review, general
and administrative expenses amounted to HK$116,783,000,
representing an increase of approximately 0.6% or HK$663,000
from approximately HK$116,120,000 for the same period last
year. The selling and distribution cost increased by 4.3% or
HK$4,073,000 from approximately HK$93,875,000 in last year to
approximately HK$97,948,000 of the Year Under Review. Due to
its dedicated efforts in controlling the operating costs, the Group
was able to maintain a relatively low level of growth in expenses
despite of growth in the turnover.

As a result, the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
decreased from approximately HK$26,071,000 of last year to
approximately HK$6,439,000 of the Year Under Review which
is mainly due to decrease in contribution from the securities
investments.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our customers,
suppliers, business partners for their support. Meanwhile, | would
like to offer my highest gratitude to our shareholders for their
devotion and to our employees for their loyalty and contributions
to the Group during the Year Under Review.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE:t:m R o

Business Review

In 2018, the economic growth rate in Hong Kong and China was
3.8% and 6.8%, respectively, indicating a continuing economic
growth. As a result, the beauty and slimming industry in Hong Kong
and China grew continuously. The Group successfully leveraged on
its excellent brand visibility and solid customer base in both Hong
Kong and China to capture the opportunity of this growth.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$2,607,987,000,
representing an increase of 17.0% from approximately
HK$2,228,417,000 of last year. This was mainly attributable
to a significant growth of 19.6% in the contributions from the
distribution business and 7.4% in the contributions from the
core business of provision of beauty and slimming services. In
the recent year, given that the Hong Kong population maintains
the predominance of females over males and that many Hong
Kong females belong to the high-earning group, females have
become an important consumer group for the Hong Kong retail
market with the beauty and slimming services and products being
increasingly viewed as daily necessities more than luxuries. On
the other hand, the demand for beauty and slimming services and
products in the PRC was stimulated by the increasing middle-
class population. The Group is positive that still more prosperous
results can be accomplished by riding on the industry leadership
in Hong Kong and China and sound reputation and customer
confidence it has built over the years. The business of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products of Shanghai Dong Fang
Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”) also have significant growth
momentum as a result of successful strategy through expansion in
online platform sales, generating a contribution to the turnover of
approximately HK$2,422,133,000 up by 19.6% from approximately
HK$2,024,349,000 of last year, forming another stable source of
revenues for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBt LD

Profit for the year decreased by 49.1% from approximately
HK$37,553,000 of last year to approximately HK$19,106,000, as
the securities investments business brought along net realised
and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$58,527,000 and HK$26,585,000
respectively in last year while merely approximately
HK$42,031,000 of net realised gains and approximately
HK$20,111,000 of net unrealised gains were recorded in the Year
Under Reivew.

As at 31 March 2018, cash and bank balances increased
to approximately HK$496,482,000 (2017: approximately
HK$522,045,000), whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio
of current assets over current liabilities) was 3.48:1 (2017: 3.15:1),
reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year Under Review, although
Hong Kong and China economy grew
continuously, it still faced various negative
factors such as increasing costs of sales,
rising salaries and inflating rentals. The
beauty, slimming and spa business was
unavoidably affected to some extent in
the Year Under Review. Despite that, the
Group recorded a 7.4% increase in the
overall turnover of this business segment
as compared to last year as it successfully
brought its fundamental advantages to
the full play to resist the industry cold
snap under the outstanding leadership of
the management. This was a tremendous
encouragement to the Group amidst the
severe business environment at the present
and testified to the solid strengths of the
Group.
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The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong and the PRC. With extensive
experience in the industry and committed efforts for innovations,
the Group has continuously introduced sophisticated services and
products of the highest quality for its customers, winning the long-
term favour of its customers for its beauty and slimming products
and services while successfully establishing brand advantages
and customer loyalty. To further fortify its leading position in the
industry, the Group has introduced a number of new beauty,
slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the
Year Under Review.

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed
by the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous
awards over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. It was strongly trusted by its customers.
With increasingly intensive market competition, some industry
players have resorted to all possible means including dishonest
sales methods to secure their market shares. Coupled with
various beauty and slimming incidents during recent years and
seriously weak and outdated government supervision, customer
confidence has been impaired. This, however, has at the same
time encouraged the customer demand for quality beauty and
slimming services, enabling the increase in the turnover from the
beauty, slimming and spa centres of the Group in the Year Under
Review, proving the market’s recognition for the quality products
and services provided by the Group. Maintaining the strategy of
winning with quality, the Group will continue to leverage on its
professional and outstanding beauty and slimming technologies,
bring its brand visibility to the full play, and operate with honest
and honour, in order to win over the consumers’ trust, secure
a wider business coverage in the high-end market and thereby
realise sustainable growth and return.
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Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets,
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-Il business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongqging city (8 provinces and cities
in total). In the Year Under Review, Dong Fang has expanded
its sales through online platforms successfully which resulted in
significant growth in revenue.
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Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself
abreast of time and marching at the forefront
of the market. Through heavily investing in
the development and introduction of products
embedding advanced technologies and safe
ingredients to enrich its portfolio of health and
beauty products, the Group targets to bring
to its customers a wider array of sophisticated
product choices. This will in turn further
enhance the attraction of the brand name Sau
San Tong and ensure the Group’s leading
market position.
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Going forward, the Group will continue to launch different safe and
effective products that meet the different needs of its customers,
helping them to achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that
the segment of distribution of health and beauty products will
continue to make a stable contribution to the Group’s results in
the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong
brand visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous
market in the PRC back in early 2004 and effectively laid a solid
foundation in the beauty and slimming industry in China ahead
of its counterparts, reaping a sizeable market share. Envying
the outstanding achievement of “Sau San Tong”, competitors,
imitators and even fakers began to spring up like mushroom
on the PRC market where the entry barrier to the industry was
relatively low. To tackle the situation, apart from establishing high-
end flagship centres in China to help clearly identify ourselves, the
Group specially combined the name of our founder, Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley with its brand name to form the new brand of
“REIMEHE” to establish the uniqueness of the brand, using
it to fully explore the PRC market while letting the market and
consumer more easily distinguish the genuine “Sau San Tong”
brand and its inherent quality and professional products and
services, protecting the consumers’ rights. Since the efforts to
developing the franchise cooperation business in full sail since
December 2010, we have entered into more than 100 franchise
co-operation contracts as at 31 March 2018. The existing number
of franchise co-operation shops also put “sk EHHMEHE” on the
top position in the beauty and slimming industry in China.
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BeautyU Online Booking Platform

Following its successful establishment of a huge franchise co-
operation business in China, the Group once again stepped
ahead of its competitors in launching “BeautyU” (www.beautyu.
com) in 2012, an online beauty and slimming service booking
platform, through which its customers can conveniently and easily
order products and make appointments for different services.
This platform out of the traditional hard-selling and prepayment
business model was warmly welcomed by the retail customers of
the Group. Moreover, this platform also functions as a channel to
solicit beauty and slimming service providers to join, helping to
propel the Group’s business in the PRC.

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-and
short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and other
recognised securities markets in the overseas as well as wealth
management products purchased from banks and other financial
institutions, with a view to generate additional income outside its
retail business, to widen its revenue base and minimise the risks
of the Group on the overall, in order to enhance the capital use
of the Company as well as the overall interests of the Company
and its shareholders. During the Year Under Review, the Group
has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$62,142,000 from its
investments in the Hong Kong stock market and unlisted equity
fund outside Hong Kong, encompassing investments in a high
variety of industries including construction, real estates, retailing,
food and beverage, finance, industry and education, with the
objective of minimising the risks while maximising the return. As at
31 March 2018, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$137,899,000.
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Money Lending Business

In last year, the Group commenced new business of money
leading in order to better utilise the idle funds to generate
additional returns to the Company. The Group provided both
secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging from several
months to 2 years. The Group has recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$7,779,000 for the year. As at 31 March 2018,
the loans receivable from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$55,816,000.

Acquisition of Properties

During the Year Under Review, the Group leveraged on its solid
strengths and adequate funds to acquire a residential property in
Hong Kong through acquisition of a subsidiary at a consideration
of approximately HK$16,000,000. The acquisition was completed
in November 2017.

Outlook

The Group played the strengths it has long established to attain a
significant growth in turnover in the Year Under Review with quality
service and products, honest operation, excellent reputation and
good words of mouth. In face of the continuing economic growth
in Hong Kong and China, the Group will continue to consistently
maintain a positive attitude to explore, research and develop
more sophisticated and effective health and beauty products and
professional treatments, in order to meet the pursuit and demand
for beauty and health by the ladies in Hong Kong and China and
in turn achieve stable growth and enhance the performance of
the Group’s core business. Meanwhile, the Group is also devoted
to the training of its people, and has specifically devised training
courses targeted at the employees of the franchise co-operation
shops on the mainland market, with the aim to ensure the
consistence in the quality of operation and services of the beauty,
slimming and spa centres across different places.
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In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate and
timely investments in securities, money lending and properties,
with the objectives of generating additional return, broadening its
revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital use and further
promote the performance of the Group in different areas. The
Group will meticulously select sound investments with high return
potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate on bringing
its strengths, customer base, reputation and other advantages into
full play in order to actualise stable growth of its core business.
This will be complemented with careful investments in the effort to
bring along more rewarding returns to our investors.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional training
to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality. Moreover,
the Group is the first slimming company in Hong Kong to set up
a free health services hotline to provide consultation services on
weight management. This move is targeted to take care of different
walks of society through suggesting to those looking to improve
their body the correct ways for a balanced diet, free of charge.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services,
the Group was proud to receive “The
Most Outstanding Achievement Brand of
Asia Beauty & Health Award” from the
International Beauty and Health Brand
Festival, Asia during the Year Under

Review and is honoured to be the “Caring
Company” for ten consecutive years.
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Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its
yearning for physical perfection.
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2018 were approximately
HK$496,482,000 compared to approximately HK$522,045,000
as at 31 March 2017. Gearing ratio of the Group was 10.1%
(2017: 7.3%), based on total of bank loans of approximately
HK$99,976,000 (2017: approximately HK$67,731,000) and
the net assets of approximately HK$991,024,000 (2017:
approximately HK$933,822,000). As at 31 March 2018, liability of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$335,666,000 (2017:
approximately HK$359,519,000), including trade and other
payables of approximately HK$185,685,000 (2017: approximately
HK$169,387,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of
our subsidiary, Dong Fang, deferred income of approximately
HK$16,175,000 (2017: approximately HK$23,189,000), and bank
loans of approximately HK$99,976,000 (2017: approximately
HK$67,731,000) arising mainly from the trading activities of Dong
Fang. The liability is intended to be financed by internal resources
of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a
ratio of current assets over current liabilities was 3.48:1 (2017:
3.15:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.
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Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group
has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial
products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting
in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the
use of proceeds is as follows:

— approximately HK$40,000,000 was used for the development
of the Group’s money lending business;

— approximately HK$20,000,000 was used for repayment of
the outstanding amount due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
under the Convertible Note;

—  approximately HK$30,000,000 was used for the development
of securities trading business;

—  approximately HK$16,000,000 was used for acquisition of
a residential property in Hong Kong through acquisition of a
subsidiary; and

— approximately HK$6,000,000 was used for renovation of
office and shops.

The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$240,000,000 was
unutilised at the date of this report.

EBEE

AEBRMEBEZBBRE - AEEEHRE
HEEPZHBHRRABEEERR - NEEE
WK 2 FH YR RERO0R - REHE
nBETER  AEETYEEERBDEDN
o AERAKECEE BERAEZRY
Bo&EB UMERAKEAIENEESHH
B AKREUERENETH  BFHEEE
& RREE M

SME RLBR

HRAEBzEE  Aff - WEMIREEIN
BERAREHME  IASERRLBATE
RHNE R Ep R

—+tF=ZA=ZHERER  EA
\ %&Iﬁﬁ%%ﬁ #9352,000,00078 7T ° FT1§ 7 IA

3
B
N
=
FE
- &

—  #940,000,000 B TEHARERAEE 2
MEER

—  #920,000,000F TE AR EE TR E
BEETEMREMEL 2 REEFHE

—  #930,000,000 B TEARERELESE
E

—  #316,000,000F T E AR5 B U EE —
WEBARKE—BEEEEEWE : &

—  #96,000,000 8L ARBIF I AE KIS
ﬁ o

AR E H B - 82T P15 538 49240,000,000
ATTHAREA °

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA A

Annual Report 2017/18 &£ EH &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE:t:m R o

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$991,024,000 compared to approximately
HK$933,822,000 as at 31 March 2017. Except for certain
trade receivables of approximately HK$222,396,000 (2017:
HK$143,342,000) pledged for certain bank loans of the Group,
there are no other charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 March
2018 and 2017.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 413 (2017: 522) employees.
During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$103,548,000 (2017: approximately
HK$96,298,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2018 there is an aggregate of 36,422,718 outstanding
options to subscribe for 36,422,718 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 24 February
2016.
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Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty
and slimming services and products into necessities, coupled
with the continued growth of the middle class in China, the
demand for quality products and services will remain on the
upward momentum in both Hong Kong and the PRC. As such,
the Group will continue to spare no efforts in the development
and introduction of different sophisticated and innovative
treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to nurture
our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new
customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach under
the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating environment
at present.

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong
and the rapid growth in the e-tail market in China, the Group takes
e-commerce as an inevitable path to success. The Group plans to
increase its promotional efforts on different social media platforms
in order to increase the awareness of the younger generation for
our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO, and thereby broaden
the Group’s customer base. In terms of the PRC market, the
Group will continue to capitalise on the innovative business model
of its online beauty and slimming appointment platform “BeautyU”,
which will serve to fortify the Group’s industry position, and at
the same time improving brand visibility of our brand name on
the internet at relatively low cost, enhance the experience of
making purchases and bookings for our retail customers, and
provide a highly accessible platform to our potential partners of
beauty and slimming service providers to promote entrepreneurial
opportunities.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.
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Directors

Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 30, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of
the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with major in General Finance from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui had worked in Corporate Restructuring
Services for an international accounting firm. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and
securities investment.

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin (“Mr. Chan”), aged 39, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in September 2017. He is also the
chairman of nomination Committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Bachelor of Arts
in 2001 and has obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Chan
has over 10 years of experience in education and investment.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute (“HKSI”). Mr. Chan has the following HKSI
certificates: Dealing in Securities, Derivatives, Corporate Finance
and Asset Management. Mr. Chan is currently the Court Member
of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the Standing
Committee of the University of Hong Kong Convocation.

Non-executive Director

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), aged 43, is
the Honorary Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Dr. Cheung founded the Group in 2000, and over the
years, by virtue of her over 17 years’ expertise in beauty and
slimming industry and profound understanding and unique vision
on the market, she can fully capitalize on the trends and changes
in the market and leading the Group successfully developed into
a famous and reputable brand in Greater China. Dr. Cheung
holds an honorary doctorate degree from Armstrong University,
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U.S.A. and an Executive Master degree of Business Administration
from Peking University. Dr. Cheung is responsible for the
overall stewardship of the Group which includes directions and
formulating strategies. With her management style and innovative
promotional strategies, she achieved various accomplishments and
leading the Group to a new height. She also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she has been appointed as a member of the
Beauty Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau
— Qualifications Framework in 2006. In the past, Dr. Cheung was
awarded as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs
in China” by the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”.
She is also one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the
youngest awarded entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has
been awarded as one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is an Honorary Consultant
of The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheung has
founded the Shirley Cheung Charity Foundation, which is granted
as an approved charitable organization. As a Chairman of the
Foundation, she leads the team to serve and feedback to the
community in every minute and every moment.

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 54, is a Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2016, holds a bachelor
degree of Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He
has over 12 years’ experience in foreign equities investment. He
was the investment manager of several investment funds in Japan
including Yasuda Trust & Banking Corporation Limited and Fuji
Investment Management Company Limited. He also specializes in
merger and acquisitions, his clients cover major reputable Japan
corporations. Mr. Togo has been serving as the chief executive
officer of a consultancy firm in Japan since 2000. He is also
currently participating in a few big property projects in Tokyo and
Osaka.

Mr. Togo is currently an executive director of China Information
Technology Development Limited (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8178).
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin (“Mr. Hong”), aged 68, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director and joined the Group in
June 2002. He is responsible for giving advices to the board
of Directors and shareholders of the Company. He is also the
chairman of the Company’s audit committee, a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor and a notary public in Hong
Kong. He has been practicing as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong for over 37 years and is the senior partner of Messrs
Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in science
from University of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an independent
non-executive director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 919).

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged
69, joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, and also as a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of banking experience
in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. She was Senior Vice
President at the Republic National Bank of New York for almost
thirteen years and was responsible for the management and
investment of third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu is an associate
and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Ms. Chiu
was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong
Government in 1992 and as Cavaliere by the ltalian Government
in 1999 and she is Montblanc Outstanding Business Lady of
the year 2002 in Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime
Investments Group Limited. She is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of National Agricultural Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1236), CPM Group Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1932) and China
Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1515). Ms. Chiu is licensed to carry out asset management
business under Type 9 regulated activity under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong).
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Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 38, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He has over 15 years of working experience in
accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring and private
equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree of business
administration from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
also is a Certified Public Accountant in Washington State, USA.
Mr. Lau is a non-executive director of Risecomm Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1679).

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 34, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in
December 2015 and is responsible for the overall management,
business strategy and development of the Group. She is also
involved in the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s
policies. Dr. Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the
International American University, U.S.A. and has more than 13
years of experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr.
Kwan has served as the management of a beauty and slimming
company in Hong Kong and is an Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Beauty & Wellness Association.
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Introduction

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest

of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2018, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.7

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The Chairman
of the Board considered that it was unnecessary as it would
be more transparent and efficient to let the Independent Non-
executive Directors express their views to all Executive Directors
in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the Chairman of the Board
always welcomes all Independent Non-executive Directors to
communicate with her directly via email or phone to discuss any
matters of the Company from time to time.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
term of office for non-executive directors is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. As
such, the Company considers that such provisions are sufficient to
meet the underlying objective of this code provision.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, and Mr. Lau
Wai Leung, Alfred, being the Independent Non-executive Directors,
due to other unexpected important engagements, were unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
22 September 2017.
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Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide
all members of the board with monthly updates. Management
considers that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates
when developments arising out of the ordinary business instead
of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board to discharge its
duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review, the Executive
Directors have provided, and will continue to provide, to all
Independent Non-executive Directors updates on any material
changes to the position and prospects of the Company, which
are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the same to serve the purpose required by the code provision
C.1.2.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised of seven Directors,
including two Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition
of the Board during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman)
(resigned on 6 September 2017)
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin (appointed on 6 September 2017)
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Non-executive Director

Dr. Cheng Yuk Shan, Shirley (Honorary Chairman)
(appointed in 6 September 2017)

Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley was redesignated as non-executive
Director and Honorary Chairman of the Company with effect
from 6 September 2017 due to her personal and other business
commitments. Dr. Cheung has confirmed to the Board that she
has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter
in respect of her redesignation that needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors which is more than half of the Board.
They are professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 24 to 27.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval
by the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has
a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her interest and
abstains from voting.
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Six meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

alE

FR BEFGHBETARER BEFHEE
ZeeRIBRHINWT ¢

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHS HE T BITEERE HE=E
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) sREHHEL(F/Z) 3/3 100%

(resigned on 6 September 2017) (RZZE—tFNASHE

£)

Mr. Mui Wai Sum HHEER B £ 6/6 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR G 5e 4 3/3 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Honorary — R EHHE+ (L2 ) 3/3 100%

Chairman) (R=ZE—tFNLARBE

(appointed on 6 September 2017) Z1E)
Mr. Takashi Togo HABE LT E 6/6 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors  BMFHTES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BERLAE 6/6 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ko o 6/6 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RlEREE 6/6 100%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZAERERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-Executive Director is not appointed
for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election at the AGM
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr. Chan Ka Kin shall
retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. All the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board and
the Nomination Committee recommended their reappointment.
The Company’s circular, to be sent to the Shareholders, contains
detailed information of the above Directors as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and performed by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and
Dr. Kwan Fei Ying respectively to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning and leadership of the Board whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s business development
and daily management and operation generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 20083, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing,
Kathy and Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. The Committee is chaired
by Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin. No member of the Audit Committee
is @ member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHE HEBITERAE HE=R
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) RERSEE(ERE) 4/4 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ik A Lo 4/4 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE 4/4 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu
Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. The Committee
is chaired by Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the
Non- Executive Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHR HEEBITEBERE HER
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (Chairman) #4& B4 +(3/E) 2/2 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin RREM&E 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred BEREAE 2/2 100%
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (resigned on 6 September
2017), Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Chan Ka Kin (appointed on
6 September 2017) and all Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan
Ka Kin.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During
the year, the Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred to be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Board.
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Two meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

HE

FR - REBERE

SHEITMAE® - BKE
LEREEESEH

BREIIAT

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate

Name of members REHR HEBITEERE HE=R
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) 3k E#i&E+(F/E) 2/2 100%

(resigned on 6 September 2017) (R=—ZE—+F N ANH

BH(E)

Mr. Mui Wai Sum RIS & 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin RREEE(R_TE—+F 0/0 N/A

(appointed on 6 September 2017) NANBEZRE) i@
Independent Non-executive Directors BV EHITES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REMEE 2/2 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy e EZt 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred SRR 2/2 100%
Corporate Governance Functions 1 EE R EE
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been ARARTEKIDCEESHAEES  WHEES
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing BEROEETLEE /RS 2t @flER
the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and BRI ARNBIZEERAHRRLEER BT

review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management;
(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that
they have complied all applicable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March 2018,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or
events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
which contemplates continuity of normal business activities and
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,250,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$264,000.
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Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee
meetings.

Mr. Ip Wai Sing (“Mr. Ip”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Ip has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: 16th Floor, Prosperity Tower, 39 Queen’s Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed

“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to
shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.sst-holding.
com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not
less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.

Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and
healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where
appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and PRESNIEBRERAEEENZEEY
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making BEEEHEEEBERE  UBEBEATE
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such FHZEEE AEFBEERZEFNBREES
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using SRELFLA] o

inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to BIELEMHAL  EFTAEURMEAEKRZ
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form FARMBRRRARERERNAREE °

of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing

Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 on pages 196 to 203 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO“ brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s Statement,
Management’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 5 to 23 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018, and

the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 70 to 215.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on pages
130 to 132.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements on
pages 165 to 166.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 November
2003 (the “Expired Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
Expired Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Expired
Share Option Scheme include fulltime or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants, agents or
advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed
to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Expired Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Expired Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Expired Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Expired Share Option Scheme (which shall be
payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the highest of (i) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of
the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the New Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers (including executive, nonexecutive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the New Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
plans of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.
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The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the New Share Option Scheme (which shall be
payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the highest of (i) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31
March 2018 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

No. of options

RIBMBEES B L 2 A EBREY K
ZBEMITEE(RETEBRESSN S AE
EFERRTEZER  EZEBTHER ()M
MREHAR(LAREEA)ERRATB®REK
Pz IEAWTIE : (NIROREZRL A
Al T8 2 25 BB R P B SRR AT 3R P T

B Ri)BihmENRSER/E) -

B T \F==A=t—HILFEEBRE
AEET CBREEHFELT

EhEsR
Cancelled/ Market value
Held at Granted  Lapsed during Exercised  Outstanding Exercise price  per share at date
1st April 2017 during the year during at the Period during which per share  of grant of options
HoE-tk theyear  ERE/ the year yearend  Date granted options are exercisable SRORE HELEBRE
BA-B&E ERgH 54 Fpfg  FARRER B4R BRETFIR 08 HK§(ET)  REZERTE
Director &%
Executive director $/725 -
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 18,211,359 - - - 18211359 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 o 0.132 0.132
Rzt (Nots) 9 March 2021
TE-NEZATR CEnEZATRE
) “EC-ESRNR
Chief Executive Officer 18,211,359 - - - 18211359 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 to 0.132 0.132
fines (Note) 9 March 2021
BREIRTE CR-REIATEE
) Z2-EZAAR
36,422,718 - - - 36420718
Note: BiEr -

The numbers of options and the subscription price per share have been
retrospectively adjusted for the Rights Issue on 26 September 2014, the Open
Offer on 25 September 2015 and Share Consolidation on 23 September 2016.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE

BREEE RERRABEER T -—WFAA - +RA
B —E-RAFNAFTRAZAREER T
—RENAZ =B ZEOHAHEBPRE -



DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE€#{i 4

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Year.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$426,978,000 (2017:
HK$436,896,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 124 to 129.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
35(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (resigned on 6 September 2017)
Mr. Mui Wai Sum

Mr. Chan Ka Kin (appointed on 6 September 2017)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (appointed on 6 September 2017)
Mr. Takashi Togo

EES:E AN

B b XS 8 | — SR B 2 AR R B
BETEIN AEENFAMET LR FERER
B o

o] 7k

BEREHEE2ERRNEA(—AAN—FXK
Bl= - &I ERIEE])  ARAZRHBEER
BEHABRTDPETFRE - R_ZT—N\F=A
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
and Mr. Chan Ka Kin, will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred as at the date of this annual report and
therefore still considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 24 to 27.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional items
of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of approximately HK$200,000 for all of
them for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

B B R

AEBEENSREBABZEHMOEHHE
Be2EREF2MHMER & KRBT
TRMETE e

FWEEER T RNFAAAZ+=BKT
MA QA EREGEM MR A5 5.34 £ 5.36
BERSFAMGNFAHEZ2AE  RZE—ZF=H
T TNABRMNKIEETRESGEE ZER L AG
KRBTz TEFBEHRATRI OB AME] -

BN €6 =

FRENSIENESRSREEABOFM
BTy E

Number of Number of senior

Directors management

EEHE SREEAEHE
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T35 7725 1,000,000 78 7T 6 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % 7T.Z 2,000,000 3 7T — —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 ¥ 7T & 3,000,000 % 7t - —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 & 7T Z 4,000,000 3 7t 1 1
Directors’ Interests in Contracts EECEHNESR

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

BEEENARANEEMMEARMEILM
RABBFEEARSEREDATEZERMEX
BHTERARRREEAER
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EERFRERX

AEERFRNEREREREFTLIRE &
SHHEEZARFNRMERRE - RESE
SERITRE -

EERTETHRAERKRD 2R
74 )

S

9

RZE—NEFE=ZA=+—H ARRIEEK=E
EITBABRESEZHMBATRAATSE
BEER (X RBHFRAEGRO([FHF LR
il 1) XV ER) 2 Bt RARRERR 5 ([ A 15 1)
HEESSAE  MARBESR XSRS
XVEBE 7 K 585 B AR FE &A1& AR B K B A2 Py
(BRBIEES KGR GRGR - HER
RABERB 2 ER R IHKR)  HIBIEES
K HRE 65151 28 352 1R7A 3 IR 1% GEM L #R A 8
546 & 5.67 RAMERNBIRBRMENT

RERFARGZHFE -

Number of shares

RHOEE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal P NN
Name of director interests interests Total ERITRAER
Esng ARER B AR 55 wme ZHHBE DL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 62,664,000 80,645,400 143,309,400 2.62%
ok BB L (Note)
(K1az)
Note: Kt -

The 62,664,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited (“Biochem”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The
entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley.
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RELGEBRG ZIE -

BT 2
ARBRBERD 2 KB RBEARRFBRE
AEIRTARBER 2B EFHBWT

Approximate
percentage

Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying issued share
shares of the capital

Company NG|
Name of director/ Subscription RAATR BRTRAK
chief executive Date of grant Exercisable period price per share HER S ER2BN
EX /TEMRABHRSE REBH CREd BRABE ZHAREY B
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$0.132 18,211,359 0.33%
BRREE “Z-R"E=ZATH 9 March 2021 013237
ey R =
—Z--f¥=ANH
Dr. Kwan Fei Ying 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$0.132 18,211,359 0.33%
EF ik “Z-R"E=ATH 9 March 2021 0.132% 7T
e R =
—Z_-¥=ANR
Note: Bier

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief
Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

HELSRAEGEOIME - LERERERREEITR
ABRUEBYEERARTETRZ R -

BEXHEBEEN  RZE—NEFEZA=Z+—
H ARFAEF - FETHRABRESE 28
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REREMGOEXVE) 2 Bm A - B E( ek
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2018, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

FTERRARO 2BEERKE

<

RZZ-NF=A=+—H  AARFHEAE
ERTETRAEMM - THRSREZESFR
HEEPIEXVEIFE2MEINERTHE » X
WRREERXREEEARARA D EITRAL%
FNE RATBERREESZLBPEGERIE
BIHEMEFEZ AT CMIAMEARRFE
LN

REBRGZIE -

Number of shareholding

FREE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR 5145 R4 [ER: )4
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 601,400,000 11.01%
FABR EREBA
H N Group Limited Beneficial owner 287,124,000 5.26%
EHEEE AR AT ERBEAA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing rules
throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
report.

B ENXPEEEN  RZT—N\F=ZA=+—
B BRARRIEZIASEERTHAR (%
SR EXEEREBITHRABR KRN 2#
@Ok J— &SN - BB AT RAR R
A HEROLREST  BERREBEESLHE
I 5 336 1R7A T AL sk Z R BUR A ©

EEWEROIES 2ER

BREXTEEREZITHRABRRN < i fk
BIFHEEN  EFNESE AEBZEBIK
m T \BR Z F A A AR By A A P
UHEWEAAR 2R RESFMER - MKE
ITMEITE A SN BARE - HEkRaa) -
S EEMMHBRBRF RN BARBETLE
MZHEESATESEMEMEABEZZ
SRR -

BT A

ARBES TERRIESEAZHEALCE
F 5 GEM L AR Al ) 3f 48 1 BN 5% (B SE 5 R A
BRI BB BT 2 RIS A IR -

BE HERBELOEARTLTES

ARBRETAHBARBMERNFAREE - &
Bl EAR R RUEA EHES
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 28 to 45.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in notes 11 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have significant events after the
reporting period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.90% (2017: 99.78%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 99.78% (2017: 99.69%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 70.98% (2017: 73.22%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$3,796,000 (2017: HK$2,788,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003, and the
Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 31 March
2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the committee are
set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report. The
audit committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2018

RRESETRESFXZZITRATE

ARREREFTLEITESF R ZEM—EKRE
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":‘:?

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | K

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
BEEZERERAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 70 to 215, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RRzE®R
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMOEFZENMEEEE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

FRBBRERN 2B

Refer to notes 2(g), 2(n)(ii) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements

FFR R E AN 2(g) - 2(n)i) & 13

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill was mainly allocated to two cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), namely, the provision of
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and
in the People’s Republic of China, which activities
arose from the acquisition of | Pro Medical Skin Care
Centre Limited and Wealthy Sound Limited and its
subsidiaries respectively.

WRZE-NF=ZA=+—H  BEXEFNEKEEFE
SiEMEAREEAEM((REeEELEM])  BIREER
RpEARAMBEREESRAERY - BHAIRENK
BENEREEBERARILEZRR AR REWE LA
ZER o

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is
based on the future business prospects and the
forecast business performance of two businesses.
EE 2 AT BRI AR R R RI R RMIAE B 2 R
RIBAEL R AL o

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£E K&

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BN E BZIETEE

evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used
by the management, in particular those relating to the
sales growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount
rate;

AEEREBMERCBRERAE  LESAHHEENEER
ERAER 2 BATALIR X

assessing and challenging cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates
and comparing historic actual results to those
budgeted so as to assess the quality of management’s
forecasts and judgements;
AEREHEREMREZESRETRA  BENEE
BEBAMTZERYE  URKRBAEREERTE
B URMAERERARAG 2 EE
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The Key Audit Matter
BREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEHEXES N EESEIR

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

FRBERERNE ZBRNE(E)

Refer to notes 2(g), 2(n)(ii) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

FRHGE R BEIREN T 2(9) ~ 2(n)(i) K 13 (&)

There is inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the basis
of the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and,
accordingly, this is one of the key judgemental areas
upon which our audit focused on. There is a risk that
the key assumptions, estimates and judgements on
which the calculations are based are inappropriate
and that goodwill is misstated as a consequence.

& 2 AT B R A PR IR TR R AR IR AR R @ M E AR
BESRTHAREE  ARRRMERKE T2 Ef—
R 52 2 B S5 05 - R RN ST HEATKIE 2 BSRER -
R HET T BE NEE - S| BEE R & o

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including sales growth beyond
the 2019 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates
and discount rates used in the model, to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of goodwill;
and
AHTEAEBRRES BENL  BE_ZE-NFHFARE
BIASNZ SHEBR - REEREREAFAMEE - U
FHMEEEZRAERGHEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those
that have the most significant effect on determination
of the recoverable amount of goodwill.

AEERRENRAEREAHBIZERRZEERS
7 IHETEEAMKREERENKREATE KRR -
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSR

Impairment of trade and other receivables

FREWE S SRER 2 EYREZRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAREESEE

Refer to notes 2(n)(i), 2(p) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

B 2RI A B RA L 20)0) ~ 2(0) KX 16

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had trade Our audit procedures in this area included:
receivables and other receivables of HK$323,432,000 MRS HE 2 BZEFEIE -

and HK$79,050,000 respectively.
RZEBE—NFE=ZF=+—H  BEEZEWEBESTER
H b e W I8 5 Bl A& 323,432,000 78 7T 12 79,050,000 78
7_E o

The determination as to whether the trade and other
receivables are collectible involves management’s
judgement. Specific factors that management
considers include the age of the balance, location of
customers, existence of disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and any other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of the counterparty.
B F EWE 5508 & H A R WRIA R B A AW ENS KB
BEZHEG BEREZRZETEAZEEARER &
FREMmE - FHEFZE OB ESNEN RERMEM
ERXSGHFEEZREEH -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£E K&

testing aged balances where no provision was
recognised for any indication of impairment. This
included verifying whether payments had been received
since the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of completion of our audit procedures, reviewing
historical payment patterns and correspondence with
the counterparty relating to expected settlement dates;
AR SRR B ERE R AT RERREME
R EREREGCDAERPREREERMEZEF
TRE BWEFIE  BEHBAXNEAREZSHFE
RATEERAEE A 2 E 2R ED8E

selecting trade and other receivables balances on
a sampling basis where a provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables was recognised and
understanding the rationale behind management’s
judgement. In order to evaluate the appropriateness
of these judgements we verified whether balances
were overdue, examined the counterparties’ historical
payment patterns and whether any payments had been
received since the end of the reporting period and up
to the date of completion of our audit procedures; and
BERWKESFIAREMBURIAEG I RARE &
hHERIE W E F R IE M H At R YRIRE 2 R E B - I8
REREBELABERZIEHR - RITGEZEHEBERE
g BMRBEEAMEEAN BEEX5UF2BRBAEIM
BAAREEREBEEHBRNEEEZEFTKE AR
A AFIA s &
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The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAREESEE

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

BREWE SRR E YRR 2 RE(E)

Refer to notes 2(n)(i), 2(p) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI A IR AM A 20)0) - 2(0) % 16 ()

Management uses this information to determine
whether an impairment loss adjustment is required
either for a specific transaction or for a counterparty’s
overall balance. We focused on this area because it
requires a high level of management judgement and
with regard to the materiality of the amounts involved.
EREERALER BEUEETRRAHBERIARS
HFEBEAMEEBERBERAE - BMERLFTE -
REZEFEEZERSKFEZEBEHE - ARBES R
SRERX -

obtaining corroborative evidence, including
correspondence relating to any disputes between the
parties involved and efforts by management to recover
the amounts outstanding, on the credit status of
significant counterparties, where available.
BEHERE  BRAMMIREHZEEMNFEZEZ K
- ERBEROREERBEZTINEARSGHFZE
AR (ER) -
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon (the “other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those
charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2018

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231
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b

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&tEER

= —

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A&7

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses
Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 79 to 215 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

A=A LIEFE
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BRER
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2018 2017
—E-)N\F T —+4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FEx FET
3 2,607,987 2,228,417
(2,362,517) (1,958,591)
245,470 269,826
4 2,796 2,694
4 3,724 4,328
(97,948) (93,875)
(116,783) (116,120)
37,259 66,853
5(a) (4,382) (4,157)
5 32,877 62,696
6 (13,771) (25,143)
19,106 37,553
6,439 26,071
12,667 11,482
19,106 37,553
HK cents HK cents
A JENL
9
0.12 1.24
T9EFE 215 B MABREEMESHRER L —



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #rietEamhEME2EKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ - — \F=A=1+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 251)
2018 2017
—®-\F —Tt%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Profit for the year FREF 19,106 37,553
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for FREMEEmKE (FE)
the year, net of nil tax BREZEHE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HErJseEFH N IEE B 2 IBR -
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation — BERINEIB AR B HHRE
of financial statements of foreign FREAZEN =5
operations 18,096 (9,669)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for FEREMBEEEE(FR)
the year 18,096 (9,669)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EWFEELE 37,202 27,884
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company FiN/NCIEZ RN 18,694 19,634
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR 18,508 8,250
37,202 27,884

The notes on pages 79 to 215 form part of the consolidated FT9RFE 2158 CMFEEXFE M BME 2 —

financial statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2018 A =Z— )\ A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAEILZ31)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Loans receivable

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Loans receivable

Interest receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amounts due to related parties
Deferred income

Current tax payable

Other liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
ERR =Y g
BEME
BIEE

[k

U E R

REBEE
3

BAFEFABRGRZEREE

FEWE 5 508

FBNFRIA - e REM R

FEWE R
JE RIS,
& B3 A 5008
ReMREFED

REBEE

RITER

FES B S 5RIA

HAitb e RIE R ERHE A
B —REERE
FEASTBAZE A T RIE
RIEWA

FERTE BAREIE

Hib & &

RBEEFH

EEATERADRE
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Note
Htat

11
11
12
13
17

14

15
16

16
17
17
18

19
20
20
21
18

22(a)
25

e BBMRR R

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$000
FEx FET
138,853 135,441
8,001 8,001

410 1,820
26,480 25,969

40 —
173,784 171,231
8,847 9,415
137,899 139,746
323,432 246,444
129,880 142,721
55,776 59,921
411 388

179 1,430
496,482 522,045
1,152,906 1,122,110
99,976 67,731
52,983 38,938
132,702 130,449
562 20,338
16,246 37,308
16,175 23,189
12,859 18,568

- 19,237
331,503 355,758
821,403 766,352
995,187 937,583




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # & B #afn &
As at 31 March 2018 R =—Z— \F=A=+—1
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 271)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaF FEx FET
Non-current liabilities kREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEBE 22(b) 4,163 3,761
NET ASSETS EEFH 991,024 933,822
Capital and reserves EERR#E 27
Share capital & A 109,268 109,268
Reserves G 850,884 812,190
Total equity attributable to owners of ~ BRBRAR TR AR L%
the Company 960,152 921,458
Non-controlling interests FEFE R T 30,872 12,364
TOTAL EQUITY HRBHE 991,024 933,822

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 EEEeRN T \FXNA-_+HRBHENRE

June 2018. T o
Chan Ka Kin Mui Wai Sum
PR =X 2 WEB
Director Director
E EFE

The notes on pages 79 to 215 form part of the consolidated FT9RFE 2158 L MFEEXFE M BME 2 —
financial statements. o o
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= HE 3L 44
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #& SEIR
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —=% F=ZA=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA,D/Liy\J
Attributable to owners of the Company
SRAELAREA
Share- The PRC [Accumulated
based  Convertble  statutory losses)/ Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Exchenge  payment otes surplus Other  refained controling Total
captel premium Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesere Tesene profts Totd  inferests equity
TEERE  REiE (Ei1E8)/
Br RAER  SREE  EREE RAMNGE BB  RBBEE  RbEE il 8% HEbER EaEE
Note HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOD  RKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSO0D
i3 T 7T T 7T 7 7 7 7 Tér tér tér tér
At 1 April 2016 HZE-AERR-A %42 49097 (3,637) 5963 4170 1214 11,083 8 (16408 837,907 14876 562,783
Changes n equity for 017:  —E-tEZRRET:
Proft or the year EEH - - - - - - - - % 201 e
Otter comprehensieloss— Zf2EEE - - - (6,437 - - - - - 6.437) (3.2 (0669
Tota comprehenshe noome for - £R2ENELE
the year - - - (6437) - - - - 26,01 19,634 8250 27884
Redemption of convertble notes BRI AREE % - - - - - (1214 - - 1214 - - -
Evpiraion of hare options~ EREE ] - - - - (1949 - - - 1948 - - -
Ropropraion o he PR~ BREIEE
statutory surpls reserve Btk - - - - - - 2638 - (2.658) - - -
Issue of shares kb 270 12,846 291382 - - - - - - - 34,228 - 34,228
Share ssue expenses OEGE el - (118 - - - - - - - (118 -y
Diidends paid to non-conrollng 23RBS
inerests & - - - - - - - - - - (3453 (B453)
Partial disposal of equity interest S8 ER-EHEAT
na Subsidiary bl B - - - - - - - 11,063 - 11,063 2309 9204
N M8 SRR M (29 o8B N EEE RS ps) %
At 31 March 2017 HoE-%
Zhzt-8 109,268 178,605 (3637) [ 2 - 13,691 11611 10172 921,468 12,364 93822

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

Annual Report 2017/18 F£E K&



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #R &1 & B3k
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—Z— )\ = A HiIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSTT27%1))

Attributable to owners of the Company

SRHENIRAL
Share- The PRC (Accumulated
based  Convertible statutory [osses)/ Non-
Share Share Merger  Exchange  payment notes ~ surplus Other ~ retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium Teserve TEServe TEServe TEServe TeServe TEServe profts Totl  interests equity
TERZE  4EEE (EiER)/

Br  ERER  o#ER  ENGR BAMRER B EBER  ReRR AR CEE L
lote HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSO0  HKSODD  HKSOMD  HKSOO0  HKSUDD  HKSOO0  HKSOND RSO0 HKSODD  HKSO
#i TEi fEE TEi FEE fET T FEi TR FEi TEi 7EE fEi

At1 April 2017 HZE-tERB-A 109,268 778,603 (3,631) (474) 22 - 13,691 1511 10,172 921,458 12,364 933,622
Changes in equity for 2018: ~ —E-NE2RH%E.

Proftfor the year E

il - - - - - - - - 6,439 649 12667 19,106
Other comprehensice ncome.~~ Ef2

e - - - 12,285 - - - - - 12,285 5,841 18,09

Tota comprehenshe inoome for - £R2ENELE

the year - - - 12,295 - - - - 6,439 18,694 18,508 37,202
Expiration of oher iabiies ~~ E4EEER % - - - - - - - 16,444 3,556 20,000 - 20,000
Ropropriain o he PRC -~~~ EREEE
fufory surplus resene it - - - - - - 204 - 209 - - -
- - - 12,295 - - 2994 16,444 7,001 38,694 18,508 57,202

At 31 March 2018 H-5-N&
ZR=t-R 109,268 718,605 (3,631) 11,781 200 - 16,685 28,05 11178 960,152 30672 991,024

The notes on pages 79 to 215 form part of the consolidated FT9RFE 2158 cMFEEKFE M BME 2 —
financial statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Net unrealised gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

— Interest income from money lending

— Bank interest income

— Dividend income

— Other interest income

— Gain arising from acquisition of a
subsidiary

— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

— Finance costs

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables, net

— Write off of trade receivables

— Write off of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties

— Write-down of inventories

— Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable

Decrease in amounts due from joint
ventures

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from related parties

Increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accrued charges

(Decrease)/increase in deferred income

Decrease in amounts due to related
parties

Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE

7PN

w3
A=+—HL&E
Note
Htat
RETEH
B35 A A
AT AE
— BRAFEGFABRZERH
BEZRERWEZFE
3
— MEZFEHKA 3
— RITHFBUA 4
— BREHBA 4
— HaFEWA 4
— WE—FMWNBRARIFMEELZ
Wezs 4
— HEME  EREEREZ
BB (W) F58 4
— BEKAK 5(a)
— B EEEH 5(c)
— ME - WELREIRE
5(c)
— RUE 5 FIE R E MU
IR EEE S5 5(c)
— MEHEWE 5518 5(c)
— Pl S L At FE KUK IE R FE UK
B A TR 5(c)
— WHEFE 5(c)

— EXREER (W) 38R

LEESEDAZEERR

FERD

BV EFABRGRZEREE
md, ()

FE W E 5 TR IR hn

BNFR - e hEMER
TR, D
JRERR A, (45h0)

FE A & 1 IR

e BEE N IR D,
(&)

e 8 5 F IR AN

H s e 3R M BT B
CR A,/ 120
EIEW A CRLA), /N
FERBEEAN T FRIBR D

BEmEaR

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
32,877 62,696
(20,111) (26,585)
(7,779) (5,947)
(2,306) (1,052)
(215) (1,168)
(195) (389)
- (1,663)
1,396 (234)
4,382 4,157
1,410 1,956
19,793 17,727
2,477 2,892
- 352
4,413 2,807
553 -
1,882 91)
38,577 55,458
964 529
21,958 (61,377)
(54,268) (49,778)
12,407 4,843
4,105 (59,921)
- 9,042
1,404 (78)
9,953 1,658
(10,629) 58,113
(8,124) 2,528
(25,056) (6,210)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HZ—=%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (}A

UBITT2%)

Cash used in operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
HK Profits Tax paid

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Net cash inflow from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash outflow from assets
acquisition

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans

Proceeds from issue of shares, net of
expenses

(Repayment to)/advance from a
director

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Interest paid on bank loans

Interest paid on convertible notes

Interest paid on broker’s overdrafts

Interest paid on loan due to a director

Net cash generated from financing
activities

J\ &

'.L|
’%/T\/\
A HiIEFE

Note
Bt

ARBEER RS

P ERRMEHR
ENEBNER

B UFH B

B R

AREEEB 2 REFR

REEH

WIEH B AR 2R RAFR

32
BEMBZRERITIFR

34
BEME  #EkRBIAR

HEME - 25 MER
IR

RS

ARBREEFH <R FE
BMEEE

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ
BT 2 TSR

B X 27
(A—ZESFER),
RE—BEEZHR

BEIEITER

EATIEE R 2 IR B

ENRITERZHE
EHTﬁhmﬁzﬂw
BN ELE 2 S

BN — %i%ﬁ AlbS

REBMEZTH RS FHE

WEREXR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(8,709) (45,188)
(9,680) (10,062)
(9,698) 717)
11,003 6,611
215 1,168
(16,869) (48,188)
= 863
(15,920) (8,000)
(8,127) (70,266)
789 472
(23,258) (76,931)
99,976 169,328
= 352,354
(20,016) 447
(74,982) (124,174)
= (8,453)
(3,618) (2,456)
= (400)
(1) (220)
= (100)
1,359 386,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZeliEeRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ;3 NF=A=+ IFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA

(Decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBESZEWCRD)

cash equivalents N

Cash and cash equivalents at ROUA—BAZzREREE
1 April ZEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEH o XE
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=1+—HZERER
31 March HeEEY

The notes on pages 79 to 215 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
&t FET FET
(38,768) 261,207
522,045 263,867
13,205 (3,029)
496,482 522,045
FIOEFE25 B ZWAERGEUEREKZ —

BB



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #ak Mi5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and 16th Floor, Prosperity Tower, 39
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

REEHR

BEEERBERAR(ARTDR=_ET
ZFRAZT—HREASHEF2E
REVE(—NRAN—FE = &iFE KRB
FEHERESEMKIAEREBRA
A MERMEZZZT=F+—A+NH
BREBBERXSMAER AT (HAM])
GEM £

RATIAFESHERTE  AdftiEk
N E MR BIAL Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
BEAPREFRNBPIOREREERNE
1642 o

FESTBER
(a) BfIERH

BEZZ—-NFE=ZA=+—HIt#F
BEZREMBRRBBEARARARRE
WEAR (FiE AERE]) -

ZEGEAVBBRRERIBEMAER
BEUBREEN(EZEHBERS
R R EEEESTAAS
(IERgtMAg DR ZMEE
EREEMBHREEL  FEE
AEA(TEEGTER ) KRE)
BB ARG RAREFERBRD
ZEBERERE  RFHEAMHH
RITFTEBZMGEME S LR
AI(TGEM LR R 1) 2 8 A 5 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provided information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial instruments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments and investment property
are stated at their fair values (see notes 2(h), 2(i) and
2(j) respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 39.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 40).
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5II7R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 575 i85

2

YA

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5 7E #E8ASN » B T

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(n)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree
to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g) and 2(n)
(). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

()

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition-date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee
benefits, respectively;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

[

BEAETHN

7

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Business combinations (Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s
share-based payment awards are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment;
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations, are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)

(i

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of the Group’s previously held interest in
the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a

bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured

either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’

proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s

identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement

basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9

(h)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see note 2(f)) less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(n)(ii).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity securities held-for-trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0

(k)

Investment property

Investment property is a building which is owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(m)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(m)),
and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are
accounted for as described in note 2(m).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(n)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 2(ab)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired term of
lease
10.0% — 33.3%

10.0% — 33.3%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures
Office and computer 10.0% — 33.3%
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of

Leasehold improvements

leases (whichever is

shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0% — 33.3%

No provision for depreciation is made on construction

in progress until such time when the relevant assets are

completed and put into use. Construction in progress

is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,

plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

o

(m)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)(ii).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(j)); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges (Continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property
(see note 2(j)).

(n) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— the Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB AR - BB THIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor or
borrower;

observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets
in the portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in joint ventures recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(g)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(n)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(n)(ii).

For trade, loans and other current
receivables, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:
(Continued)

—  (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade,
loans and other receivables, whose recovery
In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts

is considered doubtful but not remote.

are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(B BRI - BT

5IR)

2

mE P BwRME

FTESTBE®E)

(n)

BEREE)

(i)

RERFXEZZKERAMER
HEZHEE(E)

B EMZEREFLE Al
BT 77 VB E S MR LA
BEE: (&)

- (%)

MR EBESBEEHLR
HARER A+ T 2% 18 )
BRI EEE
BEEZEMHHE A
HMEBBEENEZD R
@ - BEEBEEE T F
BYEEZREERSB
P8 1E 2 3 4 SRR
EREEMNREEE <K
mEfE -

WERBEER EEEEEETT
s - MR AT AR A ]
B IERIE Z B E 5K
R~ EUWE R HE M EUOR
PR 2 R E R R AIER N -
ERT - REZBEEBIERE
RBERLTRE - EAKEE®R
A E AR KR - AR AT A]
Wbl z &R E & EEWE 5
TR N EL At PR WOR TEE 1TSS
MAEAR B ERAR A R2%E
BERzeBAIGRE - Hig
Wl ER BB BRI 2SR
SHERBRBE - Rk HE
il 52 B % EL & Y 3] 5 B B 4%
H BENIEmPRER -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA A

Annual Report 2017/18 &£ EH &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B AN - B ITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESEHBE#E)
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued) n) BEREE)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 .

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5 7E #E8ASN » B T

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(n)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets, or if not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment
(see note 2(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from
loans granted to borrowers in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of interest receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment
(see note 2(n)(i)).

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (

S A AN

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible notes
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
convertible notes reserve is released directly to retained

profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks and securities
brokers that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Overdrafts with banks and securities brokers that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories at the end of
the reporting period.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity.

The Company operates a share option scheme
under which the Group receives services or goods
from its directors, employees and other eligible
participants as consideration for share options of
the Company. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Binomial Lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(j), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2

N=P=

BEAHIN

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (

S A AN

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

@

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided

it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs,

if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of health,
beauty and related products is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
service contract. Revenue is also recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the deferred income
upon expiry of the service contract.

Franchise fees income
Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual

basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

@

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. When a loan and
interest receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #ak Mi5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEETHBER@

(aa) Translation of foreign currencies

(aa) EBE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the
acquisition of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (

2

IN=P

(B =B =TS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ab) Borrowing costs

(ac)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ac) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(if)

(vi)

(vil)

(vili)

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk SA £ » A THIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEESFHBER@

(ad) Segment reporting (ad) 2/ E

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #ak Mi5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and
slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale of
health, beauty and related products, investments in securities
and provision of money lending business.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty
and slimming services, net of discounts; franchise fees
income; net gains or losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; and interest income earned from the
money lending business. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is
as follows:

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products

Provision of beauty and slimming R ER KBRS
services

Provision of franchise services IRENBE S 1ERTE

Sale of health, beauty and related

products

7 S E AR N B A

HERE B NMEEER

S

et Mz oy
E 3]

AEBEZEFEXB AN HEE L UNER
Em - REEBLEERY - RHEMES
tERRT - HERRE  XBRBBEER &
I E RIEHRERER -

LEBEATPARHERRETN R
B EERSIEMEERCERE XA
RE XD LA ARS8 £ 47 0 2 IR 7§ W
A IMBEEERA B EF ARR
ZEMEEZWRSERFE  ARKE
EBRMEZMBIA - FA - RNEFHERE
REETBWmBERISEMAT

Net realised gains on financial assets at IEAFEFABEZZEMEEZD

fair value through profit or loss IR AR FRE

Net unrealised gains on financial assets XA FEFABRZSREEZ X

at fair value through profit or loss IR F R
Interest income from money lending WEZFEBA

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,422,133 2,024,349
107,576 100,183
2,976 6,885
5,381 5,941
42,031 58,527
20,111 26,585
7,779 5,947
2,607,987 2,228,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 53BN - 9B ITTIIR)
4 Other revenue and net income 4 HKWBERWAFEEE
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Other revenue Hih gz
Bank interest income HITHEWA 2,306 1,052
Dividend income 4S8 ON 215 1,168
Other interest income HAnF S HA 195 389
Others E 80 85
2,796 2,694
Other net income Hi W A58
Subsidies from the PRC government FR B 1B 7T 4 B 5,114 1,591
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE « #E N X2
plant and equipment (F18) /W 55 (1,396) 234
Gain arising from acquisition of a U B — FEI BT BB 8 B P R A 2 W s
subsidiary — 1,663
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) PE S Uezs,/ (518) %58 6 (1)
Others HAh - 841
3,724 4,328

Subsidies from the PRC government represent funds and
subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s
development and business activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #= & B # R R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B ERIN + B TTIIR)
5 Profit before taxation 5 PBRBANER
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: BrEd R & M 2R T3 FIA
2018 2017
—ZE-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
(a) Finance costs: (a) BB KA :
Interest on bank loans RITEFZFE 3,618 2,456
Interest on convertible notes AR SR 2 B - 641
Interest on other liabilities HEtBEZHE 763 740
Interest on broker’s overdrafts BHRBEZ 2F B 1 220
Interest on loan due to a director ERN—REEERZFE - 100
4,382 4,157
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) E T XA (BIEEEH M
remuneration (note 7)): (Baz7)) -
Salaries, allowances and other e 2MEHEHMER
benefits 91,808 85,492
Contributions to defined contribution S EHFURIKET &) 2
retirement plans 11,740 10,806
103,548 96,298
(c) Other items: (c) HfbER :
Cost of inventories sold and EEGFEREIRHERE KA~
services provided” 2,362,517 1,958,591
Auditors’ remuneration 2% HEH BN 5 1,372 1,307
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 1,410 1,956
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - MR RRETE
equipment 19,793 17,727
Net provision for impairment BB TR
losses on:
— trade receivables — EWE HFIE 2,475 2,557
— other receivables — Hu IR 2 335
Write-down of inventories WEFE 553 —
Write off of: sy
— trade receivables — EBRESHIEB — 352
— other receivables — Hu IR 3,080 2,807
— amounts due from related — FEUREEEA TFIE
parties 1,333 —
Operating lease charges: minimum KREMHEER  HEHENK
lease payments 28,999 35,689
* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes - EEFERERHBRBZIAABIESHEE
HK$1,204,000 (2017: HK$1,306,000) relating to staff costs and TRARITE 21,204,000 BTL(ZF—+
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total & 1,306,090;%71:) '\Eiiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ’fﬁ%%ﬁ B
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each of SR 9 RIFEA £ Sk 5 5(0) B 3 EE
these types of expenses. 2 ABFEMEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B AN - B ITIIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 SZEBBIRAZFENH
of profit or loss

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) HEEBZRAZBIIERE:
loss represents:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax EHBE — FEANEH
Provision for the year (note 22(a)) FREBE (I 22(a) - 14,422
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFEEEETE 2,548 290
2,548 14,712

Current tax - PRC Enterprise Income  EHHiE — hEL%E
Tax Frigst

Provision for the year (note 22(a)) FNBAE (B 22(a)) 11,223 10,445
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFERBEEE - (14)
11,223 10,431
Income tax expense FriS Rt & 13,771 25,143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (Continued)

(i)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
relevant countries.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect of the
undistributed profits derived prior to 31 December
2007 are exempt from the withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax
that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the directors of the Company is in a
position to control the dividend policies of the
PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

(BR5AEHIN - HLAETIIR)

6

BEBRBRRAZIEBH 2

(a)

REBBRRAZBEE (B)

(i

ZE-NF2EBFEH &
BIERFENGETERBER 2
16.5% (ZF — L% : 16.5%)
FHE - BINHB AR 2 RIEE
HERRRTZEAEHHE
Bk -

RIBFETE  AEERHE
ZHBRR(THEMEAR])
—ETTN\F-A-HEEL
M AR ASNERE E R
FB ML 2 A RISE N
BEREEDRZFEME - D
72 5% 3% 10% T R i Fa H1
FISH - REBEPBEBR LA ZRR
FOERBRB L - AEER—
ETLFT_A=t—HAE
A2 R TRk ) FE e B B
RAEZBERBIFEMAER

—E-)N\EFER-T—tF=
A=1T—H BARAREEZR
A 122 il 7 B P B8 X B 2 AR
BRFEHPEMBELFANAR
KRS EIRA B A DK -
B ERPEMBLAE -F
TENF-A-HEELZKE
o i ) FE A 2 B IR B R IR
ERIBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 HSMEBEZRAZHMENR =
of profit or loss (Continued)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 Z#ZRERA

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) FIEHMXREREANEAEZS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FHRRIZH R ¢
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation FR 75 B A 32,877 62,696
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRERRF - REMIA « IR
calculated at the rates applicable to HEANBBREER &
profits in the jurisdictions concerned Pz ETE 7,571 22,944
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR B AT 2 HET & 6,978 2,353
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBWA BB E (10,496) (7,951)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERERER o MBETE
recognised (929) (623)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERAREAHIBEE 2
recognised B 10,238 12,139
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRABARERTIESE L
previously not recognised Mg E (2,139) (4,799)
Under provision in respect of prior years, @TFERENE @ FE
net 2,548 276
Others HAh - 800
Actual tax expense FRMIER X 13,771 25,143

Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE




Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section

383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as

follows:

Executive directors
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
(resigned on 6 September 2017)
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin (appointed on
6 September 2017)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Takashi Togo

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (appointed on
6 September 2017)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Ms. Hui Yat Lam

(resigned on 16 December 2016)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

(apppointed on 16 December 2016)

UrEs
REMBL(N-F-F
NARRRE)
BEREE
REELER-F-LF
NASRREZH)

FunEs

RbELRA

REMBL(R-F-F
NARREZEH)

Bukufgs
RESAL
FERL(RCF-AE
TZATRERE)
k2 e
HRREE(R-F-1E
tZATRRERE)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

EE=HM

RIREE R B&PI 5 383(1) 14 -
BEENZERRAOFE 28R GEM £H

MAKE 2 EEFHM T

Salaries, allowances and  Retirement scheme

mePBHmERME

~ A

Directors’ fees benefits in kind contributions Total
EShe e BURENAE BRGHEIAR a4
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f -T-+F ZB-N\E —Z-tf ZE-N\E -T-+F ZB-N\E %%
HKS000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Az FEr  TEr TErT  TEn  FEr TEn FEL
- - 1,308 3,120 8 18 1,316 3,138
- - 360 360 18 18 378 378
- - 205 - 10 - 215 -
240 240 - - - - 240 240
- - 1,595 - 10 - 1,605 -
30 30 - - - - 30 30
- 43 - - - - - 43
50 50 - - - - 50 50
120 35 - - - - 120 35
440 398 3,468 3,480 46 36 3,954 3,014

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 45 Z#ZBRER AT
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7 .

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2017: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2017: four) individuals are as follows:

FekEMME
BIRGTEI R

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement scheme contributions

The emoluments of the four (2017: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BB AN - HUETIIR)

REFHAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

hE&eHFALH  —R(ZE—LF:
—H)REF EMEFBRWETH
B mAIMNUR(ZE—EF - mB)ALZ

W& @EmT
2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FETT

7,137 7,302

72 70

7,209 7,372

mME(ZT—+tF  OR)&HFH AL ZH

BN TIIEHE :

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —ET—tF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AZ AZ

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 T8 7T% 1,000,000 87T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 A 7L ZE 2,000,000 % 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 T = 3,000,000 7 7T = —
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7L £ 4,000,000 /& 7T 1 1
4 4

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

9 Earnings per share 9

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$6,439,000 (2017: HK$26,071,000) and
the weighted average of approximately 5,463,408,000 (2017:
2,110,522,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April ROA—BEZETEER
Effect of shares issued under rights issue RIF{AIE 17D 2 &
(note 27(a)(iv)) (Ba£27(a)iv))

Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=1+—HzEBR
shares at 31 March Do 8

As the Company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary
shares during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.

BREF

BRERBFZFARBRAARES
A i F 496,439,0008 o (— & — + F ¢
26,071,000 70 ) & 2 317 & B IR i
SE 19 # #)5,463,408,000( — & — -
2,110,522,000) f&&EHE AT -

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —T—tF

’000 000

TR Fhz

5,463,408 1,821,136

- 289,386

5,463,408 2,110,522
ARARRRBE_Z—N\FR=-_T—+
FZA=T—BILFETETMETES

LAk - EREARAREERFER -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (

[

BBAEEAI - HUBTIIR)

10 Segment reporting 10 7EHRE

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

(v)  Investments in securities

(vij  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment results.
This measurement basis excludes certain other revenue,
other net income, finance costs and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant
and equipment, current tax assets and other assets that
are managed on a central basis. Segment liabilities mainly
exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
and other liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE

EIEECREE S E A AEL KRB MR
ELBMEBETEKENE - ESTENER
FAEEMNASEZHBER - At - K
SEZEENEA

() PEBEELERESED

(i) REHEDREERE

(i) MBAEXB(BERMBSEER
HERRE XA REBER)

(iv) SHERREE EANBHEE®D

V) BHREE

(Vi) HfE

EERA 2| PEAELLETZLE D F

ZRB - FEEREIBRETHMWKE
Hip AN FRE - BEKRARARDBFHX °

DHEETETEREETYER  HERR
B EMHREEREMETERECE
E-NHABIETERENMERA

B EERBREREMETEREZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #= & B # R R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)
10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 ZEHE @)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () 2R\ -BERERE
2018
Z3-0\%
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
and skin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
PHHE HERR
ik  B#EAR nE 28R
ERER BREE RfEER RBER RERE B A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FET FEn FEL FET
Reportable segment revenue 7 257 iU 2,422,133 107,576 6,023 2,334 62,142 7719 2,607,987
Reportable segment results AT 257 H£4E 48,311 (52,866) (8,241) 1,453 58,088 7,429 54,174
Unallocated corporate FARAARL
expenses (16,915)
Profit from operations Yyl 37,259
Finance costs BERA (4,382)
Proft before taxation B AR 32,871
Income tax expense FERRY (18,771)
Proft for the year ERET 19,106
(Reversal ofprovision for ~ JHEEE(ER) /5B :
impairment losses on:
— trade receivables - EWBS3E (296) (914) 3,685 - - - 2,475
— other receivables - EfhENGR - 2 - - - - 2
Write-own of inventories ~ FEHIs - 277 - 276 - - 553
Write off of s -
— other receivables - HipUEE - 3,080 - - - = 3,080
— amounts due from - BUEEALE
related parties - 1,333 - - - - 1,333
Amortisation of intangible B AR &
assets - 1,410 - - - - 1,410
Depreciation of property, 1% - BERFENE
plant and equipment 780 13,869 264 - 1,611 - 16,524

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 EZKRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 DEPmE (&)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) PIEE - BEEREBREE)
2017
“E5+tF
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
andskin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money

products services operations products in securities lending Total

DHHE HERR

Bk REXRR MBSk )
EEER  HERE X MRER  E5RE i ak
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKBOO0  HKSO00
TET TEL TET TET TET TET TR

Reportable segment revenue T 2H7 SHE 2,024,349 100,183 11,011 1815 85,112 547 2208417
Reportable segment results Al 27 %4 32,023 (33,852) (8,100 1,020 83,772 5,780 80,643

Unallocated corporate FAEDAARR

expenses (13,790)
Profit from operations meH| 66,853
Finance costs BENA (4,157)
Profit before taxation BRERH 62,696
Income tax expense FEREY (25,143
Profit for the year ERgH] 37,568

Provision for impaiment ~ HEEEEE -

losses on:

— trade recelvables - EWESTE 436 2,121 - - - - 2,057

— other receivables - EftEIGE - 3% - - - - 3%
Write off o LR

— trade recelvables - EWESTE - - 352 - - - 352

— other recelvables - EfE%sE - 2,807 - - - - 2,807
Amortisation of intangible &/ BERS

assets - 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% » BERFENE

plant and equipment 878 13,106 337 2 1,19 - 15,517

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #= & B # R R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) PHEE -BEREGE)
2018
23-0\%
Distribution Sale of
sale of  Provision of health,
cosmetic  beauty and beauty
and skin slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
care products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AHEE HERR
8ET ] REZR B EYI
Eh  REEREE % HBER 5RE i aft
HK$:000 HK$:000 HKS$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000
FE7 FiEr FEr FiEr FiEr 77 T
Segment assets NHEE
— Property, plant and - % BERSE
equipment 3,042 26,178 396 - 3,979 - 33,595
— Intangiole assets - BAE - 40 - - - - 410
— Other assets - AtEE 430,883 141,089 1,272 2,751 454,666 120,849 1,151,516
Unallocated corporate assets APERAREE 141,169
Total assets BEu0E 1,326,690
Segment liabilties ek (275,309) (28,256) (10,433) (4n) - (138 (314,607)
Unallocated corporate FOELFAE
liabiltties (21,059)
Total liabilties BlEaE (335,666)
Additions to segment ARERYEETE
non-current assets 1,173 5,531 - - - - 6,704

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 EZKRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 &£ EH &

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 4& &ERASN -

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BLAETTHIR)

10 DEPmE (&)

AN
=

BA SRR I RE

(a) 2WXE BERAEE)

2017
Z5-tf
Distribution Sale of
sale of  Provision of health,
cosmetic  beauty and beauty
and skin slimming Franchise ~ and related  Investments Money
care products services operations products in securities lending Total
HHEE HERR
Lk REERR Gl EZ
EEED HERE £% EBER EHRE & At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT AT AT AT AT AT
Segment assets HHEE
— Property, plant and -0 BEREE
equipment 2,662 36,276 625 6 5,590 - 44,149
— Intangble assets - BfAE - 1,820 - - - - 1,820
— Qther asses - EhEE 332,929 170,572 7,724 1,983 483,537 98,420 1,090,165
Unallocated corporate assets AAEAREE 157,207
Total assets BESE 1,293,341
Seqment liabiies HHEE (246,077) (36,047) (12,904 (406) - (138) (295572
Unallocated corporate o NG
liabilties (63,947)
Total liabllities RESE (359,519)
Additions to segment ARERDEERE
non-current assets 1,086 26,481 102 - 6,785 595 35,049

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #= & B # R R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)
10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 ZEHE @)
(b) Geographical information (b) ibiHER
The Group’s revenue from external customers AREBINBEEZ W KB BIER
and information regarding non-current assets by BEEZERHEFEE ST -
geographical locations are as follows:
2018
—E2-N\F
The PRC Hong Kong Total
FE BB e

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers MR E P 7 Ukzs 2,465,593 142,394 2,607,987
Non-current assets FERBEE 12,266 161,518 173,784
2017
—E—+F
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H B A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers  4MNEE P 23S 2,072,238 156,179 2,228,417
Non-current assets EMBEE 579 170,652 171,231
(c) Major customers (c) FXEEF
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were REBEEZ—\F=ZH=1+—H8H1L
two (2017: three) customers with whom transactions FE MEBE(ZZE—LF: =R
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. Revenue from FPrZRHMMAEERZE10% A L -
distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products to Mt EPEE P o HEHE S oA k&
these customers in the PRC is set out below: BEMZWEHIN T

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Customer A BEFEA 863,042 552,454

Customer B EFB 854,940 679,426

Customer C ZFC N/A &R * 328,331
" The corresponding revenus did not contribute f BBEREWIEEBKZEI10%

10% or more of the total revenue. AL

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 EZKRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk B A 7ERFSN » B TTHIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment and
investment property

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2016

Exchange adjustments

Adaftions

Additions through busingss
combination (note 32)

Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Representing:
Cost
Valuation

At 1 Aprl 2017
Exchange adjustments
Adaftions

Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Representing:
Cost
Valuation

AAEhGE:

A5-7ERA-H

B2

7E

FaRRANRE
W&z

il

H-F-+F=f=1-R

s
e

R-F-tF0A-A
EAE

&

i

11
Al

N E-NEZA=1-H
&
A
b

AN
=

BA SRR I RE

11 Y%  BBRRERKREWE

Fumiture  Office and

Land and and  computer  Leasehold Motor  Construction Investment

buildings ~ Machinery fitures  equipment improvements  vehicles inprogress  Sub-fotal  property Total
s FhR  BAER &

It & BE  EERE  RERE  MRRE hE  RRIR Nt RENE gt
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T#r AT AT FEr T#r AT AT AT TEr TEr
49,724 23,887 6,075 9,963 46,121 12,781 74 149,02 - 149,02
- (436) (122) (188) (1,559 (705) 9 (3,039) - (3,085)
U517 1,089 662 355 15,318 8,306 - 70,260 8,001 78267
- 50 ® 9 12 - - 216 - 216
- (171) - (139) - 2,287) - 2543 - (2543
94,201 21419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 5 213929 8,001 21,930
94,241 2149 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 45 213,929 - 213,929
- - - - - - - - 8,001 8,001
94,241 24419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 445 213,929 8,001 21,930
94,241 U419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 45 213929 8,001 201,930
- 137 24 285 28% 1,046 48 5176 - 5175
16,812 1,704 108 49 3,567 2,256 - 23939 - 23,939
- 2019 (187) () 3,625) 2,251) - (8,855 - (8,859)
110,063 2484 6,812 10,008 62,786 19,19 493 234,188 8,001 242,189
110,063 2484 6,812 10,008 62,786 19,1% 493 234,188 - 234,188
- - - - - - - - 8,001 8,001
110,063 24841 6,812 10,008 62,786 19,1% 493 234,188 8,001 242,189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment and 11 Y% KBERZERREWE
investment property (Continued) (%)

Fumiture ~ Office and

Land and and  computer  Leasehold Motor ~ Construction Investment
buildings ~ Machinery fitures  equipment improvements  vehicles inprogress  Sub-fotal  property Total
t# BHR  BAER Bg

k&% B8 EREE  EERE  NRKE RE  ERIE N RRNR &k
HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOMD  AKSOOD  HKSOD
At TEr  TEr TEr TR TAT  FAT  TEr BT TEn

Accumulated depreciation:  Z3H7E :

At 1 Aprl 2016 RoE-REMA-E 753 18750 4,008 6979 25,143 0337 - 64970 - 64970
Exchange adjustments EiAE - (330) 73 (44 (863) (9 - (1904 - (1904
Charge for the year ERfE 2197 1,695 604 864 0.0 2441 - 1777 - 17727
Writen back on disposels ~ HERAT - (171) - (124 - .010) - (2,305 - (2,309
At 31 March 2017 RIE-EZf=t-R 200 19944 453 5 6 0274 - 78488 - 78,488
At 1 Aprl 2017 RZE-CEMA-R 2,950 19944 453 55 6 0274 - 78488 - 78,488
Exchange adjustments EiEe - 602 13 20 2,034 0 - 3724 - 374
Charge for the year ERfg 3,0 1,656 687 830 1072 2860 - 19793 - 19793
Writen back on disposals £k - 2019 (180) 116) (1,769 (1992 - (6,670 - (6670)
At 31 March 2018 RoE-NEZf=+-8 58 218 5,20 7919 450 10844 - %% - 9,33
Cartying amount: 3]

At 31 March 2018 RoT-NEZEST-B 104089 4,658 1610 2,089 17583 8351 95 13885 8001 146,854
At 31 March 2017 REE-EZf=t-0 9101 4475 2,18 2409 B0 8,870 5 1B 8001 14344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

11 Property, plant and equipment and
investment property (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The land and buildings and investment property are
situated in Hong Kong under medium-term leases.

Investment property

Investment property was revalued at its open market
value as at 31 March 2017 by an independent
professional valuer, ARM Appraisals Limited, an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. This valuation is categorised as Level
2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices within Level
1, or significant unobservable inputs within Level 3.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

The market value of investment property was
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basics using
market data which is publicly available. The fair value
of the investment property as at 31 March 2018 was
revalued internally without appointing any independent
valuers since the Group has subsequently disposed
of Achieve Plus Investment Limited (“Achieve Plus”),
which is principally engaged in property investment
and its major asset is the investment property, to an
independent third party on 30 April 2018 with the
total consideration of HK$8,500,000. In respect of the
subsequent disposal, the directors determine there
was no significant gain or loss in the fair value of the
investment property for the year ended 31 March 2018.

No rental income was derived from the investment
property as the investment property has not been
leased out during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

12 Intangible assets 12 BEEE
Website costs
4 uk By AR
HK$’000
FAET
Cost: RN :
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 RZE—AR"FMOA—H -
and 31 March 2018 —2—+F=A=+—A8"
—ET—+FMUNA—HR
—E-NF=A=1+—H 9,783
Accumulated amortisation: E5E £
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—RFMNA—H 6,007
Charge for the year FAEEE 1,956
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=H=+—H 7,963
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FHA—H 7,963
Charge for the year F R 1,410
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H 9,373
Carrying amount: FRIEE :
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H 410
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=A=+—H 1,820
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general FRAZEEERT A AGEEBEZERZ
and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement [—RRITHFAS] -

of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B AN - B ITIIR)

13 Goodwill 13 &
HK$’000
FET
Cost: A :
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—XRFWMNA—H 16,905
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) REWEEWE QR (HiE32) 9,085
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—~1 25,990
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+FWMA—H 25,990
Exchange adjustments b 511
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 26,501
Accumulated impairment: RiHEE :
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 RZE—RFWMWA—A -
and 31 March 2018 —ZT—+F=ZA=+—8"
—E—tFHA—HE
—E-NF=A=+—H 21
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—\F=A=+—A1 26,480
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+F=A=1+—H 25,969
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s BEL M 200 FTEl 2 A EE S5t
accounting policies as set out in note 2(g). BERAER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A :ERESN - LB ITHIR)

13 Goodwill (Continued) 13

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUSs)
identified according to country of operations and business
segment as follows:

Provision of beauty and slimming REEAREE

services — Hong Kong (“Unit A”) RiE — BE(BRA])
Provision of beauty and slimming REEAREE

services — PRC (“Unit B”) R — R ([ERB])
Money lending — Hong Kong wmiE — &8
Multiple units without significant goodwill EEAWMEBZEZMEEMN

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.

BE e

SUREAFETS  BECREXBERD
EEAKEERERCELELCRS
ELEEN)  ZFEBHBOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
16,564 16,564
9,001 8,490

595 595

320 320
26,480 25,969

EFERBEBFA G ERFICREER

EEMNHEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk SA £ » A THIR)

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 20.8% (2017: 21.2%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit A’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in Hong Kong.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of Unit B is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit B operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 24.2% (2017: 18.8%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit B. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit B’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in the PRC.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable
amount.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE

13 Goodwill (continued) 13 BE(»)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A :ERESN - LB ITHIR)

14 Inventories

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (@)

position comprise:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Merchandise BUAK o 8,847 9,415

(o) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (o) REMIZUFABZs  FESE

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DT ¢

2018 2017

—2-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEREE 2,331,306 1,945,204

Write-down of inventories FEMUR 553 —

2,331,859 1,045,204

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
(note a)

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong
(note b)

Unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong

14 78

RAMBRARANZFERSRE

15 BAFEGABSZSHEE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T

REBZ EHRAZ R (Hita)
116,271 117,493

REBZIE LM R RkES

(Htetb) 11,911 14,309
BERBBRINZIELTRAES 9,717 7,944
137,899 139,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

E A TTEIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

(a)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 Z#ZRERA

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss representing equity

securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$116,271,000 (2017: HK$117,493,000). Details of

significant investments are as follows:

e I ERAR MR

15 BAFEFABECSRMEE

=)
(75 )

(@) MBEBZLTRAES

R-_E-—NF=ZA=+—0 &%
BERQAFETABRZEHE
EEREBZLTRAEFLRLD
116,271,000 (= & — £ F -
117,493,000 7T) - ERIREFE

m
2018
28N
Percentage
of total Market value Unrealised
issued share attheend  Percentage  gain/(loss)
capital of the tothe  onchange Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number o owned by reporting Group's infairvalue  Gainf(loss) received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period total assets  for the year  on disposal the year
ERQT
KEE 8%
REEES HEHE  fBRE ZAER i3
BB BakE wng BEEE it/ hE/  EABK
RHRS BRELALE IEER vt i A e thi (£8) (F8) Blke
000 % HK$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
74 Tén 72 f&r Tén f&r
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Design, manufacture and 21,728 161% 17,738 78,713 5.93% 51,219 - -
Holdings Limited sale of mattress and (note) (note)
(formerty known soft bed products, Wz ()
as “Jia Meng property investment and
Holaings Limited") ~ securities investment,
SAEn(ERIERAR & HERAERDA
NAABRIFS  BRER NERER
PRBERAF) E5RE
1082 Hong Kong Education  Provision of private 20,000 3.65% 20318 11,800 0.89% (16,018) 7,964 -
(Int') Investments educational services, (note) (note)
Limted Investment i securifes, ) ()
property investments and
money lending busingss.
BHRERIRE  REDAKERE RER
SERRAT # MERARMERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit 15 RAFEFABZZEREE

or loss (Continued) (%)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLHTREFBHE)
2018
28
Percentage
of total Market value Unrealised
issued share attheend  Percentage  gain/{loss)
capital of the tothe  onchange Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Numberof ~ owned by reporting Group’s infairvalue  Gainf(loss)  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period  total assets  for the year  on disposal the year
ERQT
A&H 29
RERES HeHE KRR ZARR i 3
KR BAkE wg BEEE Wi/ hd/  EABK
Rk RRELRAR IEEH Rt#A id’) A e i (£8) (F8) ks
000 % HK$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
74 Tén f&r f&n 77 Tén
1691 Shun Wo Group Foundation business 50,000 1.25% 5,395 7,300 0.55% 1,905 - -
Holdings Limited of construction of
residential, industrial and
commercial buldings.
THEEARERLT BT IXREZETY
R
8351 Larry Jewely Design and retaiing of jewelry 20,600 0.57% 1,622 5,768 0.43% (1,854) 256 -
International products and sales of
Company Limited! pharmaceutical and
health products.
EXEREBERAT AHARSEREER  MRH
EBERREER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K 3B ERASN « HLABTTIIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit 15 RAFEFABZZEREE
or loss (Continued) (%)

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLTREFBHE)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 2#ZRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LAY - HABTHIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit 15 RAFEFABZZEREE

or loss (Continued) (%)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZ2LEHTREAZBHRE)
217
5-F
Percentage
of total Market value Unrealised
issued shar attheend  Percentage gain/[losg)
capital of the fothe  onchange Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investeg Number of ~ owned by reporting Group's  infarvalle  Gainffloss)  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~— the Group Cost period  fofalassets  fortheyear  on dlisposal the year
ERQT
15% E29
iRk 1 KR8 (15E RER i
f U fig  BESE ha/ fg/  ERER
RARE BREATER 1EEH buEE it A & itfi (%) (&%) BikE
000 % HKS000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000
i FEr A Tir 7ér Tr
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Design, manufacture and 21,128 7.67% 17738 27,49 2.13% 6,680 - -
Holdings Limited sale of mattress and soft (notg) note)
(formerty known bed producs, property () )
as “Jia Meng investment and securttes
Holdings Limitec!’) investment.
SRER(ERIERE & HERHERBAUK
RAAGNRAIR  En MERERESR
BERERAA) &
8215 First Credft Finance ~ Money lening business 31,000 0.85% 8,352 13,640 1.05% 5,88 180 1,060
Group Limited
F-ERERETER HERK
27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K B AN - HIABTHIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit 15 RAFEGABEZEREE

or loss (Continued) (#&)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (a) MEBZ2LEHTRAZHR(E)
2017
5-1f
Percentage
of total Market value Unrealised
issued share aitheend  Percentage gain/oss)
capial of the fothe  onchange Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of ~ owned by reporting Group's  infarvale  Gain/foss)  received for
code  company Principal activties sharesheld — the Group Cost period  fofalassels  fortheyear o disposal the year
ERQT
R&E (23
RERER ReHE  (13E JRER i
5 RisA K5 ERGE ha/ Ww/  EREM
KRS HEELTLZR IE5R Rir&E i A & i (58) (&%) Bike
000 % HK8 000 HKS'000 % HK$'000 HKS 000 HK8 000
i T#r i Fir 7ér i
25 Master Glory Group ~~ Trading of securites, 64,210 0.62% 8,206 18221 1.02% 491 601 -
Limited industrial water supply
busingss, property
development and trading
and ofher strategic
nvestments

IERERRLT  RAEH IRMAGR D
FRRERARALER
&

1082 Hong Kong Education  Provision of private 10,000 183% 4000 11,500 0.8%% 7,500 - -
(Int') Investments educational services,
Limited investment in securttes,
property investments and
maoney lencing business
EAHE(ER)REE REDAMERE RER
ERRAA # MERERNERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit

'L‘
:%/T\/\

BF %5 R 2R P =E

15 BAFEFFTAEZZEREE

the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The
investments in these investee companies were made by the
Group in prior years. For that part of investments in these
investee companies which were made in prior years, it was
subject to unrealised gain/(loss) on change in fair value was
recognised at the financial year end of the respective years.
The unrealised gain/(loss) on change in fair value of these
investee companies for the year ended 31 March 2018
excluded unrealised gain/(loss) being recognised in prior

years.

or loss (Continued) (#&)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (a) MEBZ2LEHTRAZHR(E)
017
5-1F
Percentage
of total Market value Unrealised
issued shere attheend  Percentage gain/[oss)
capial of the fothe  onchange Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of ~ owned by reporting Group's  infarvalle  Gainfloss)  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held — the Group Cost period  fofalassets  fortheyear  on dlisposal the year
ERRT
15E S
iRk 1 HERE  B1EE ARR i3
BE  RaRA AmE BEEE ha/ W&/ EREM
BhRE REELTLAR 1E5R &R i WA & it (B8 (&%) Bike
000 % HK8 000 HKS'000 % HK$'000 HKS 000 HK8 000
i 7ér i i A i
8178 China Information Development and sale of 72,888 121% 9,307 11,060 0.86% 1,663 1,097 -
Technology computer software and
Development hardware, provision
Limited of system integration
and related support
services, provision of T
infrastructure solutions
and maintenance
services, money lending
and securities tracing
PEESHAERE REREEERUKERE
RAd f- REZSEIRIEE
Xk RUEERHER
ERRMRA R Rk
- M RESEE
Note: Investments costs in these investee companies represented Wit REZEWIEENT 2 I EK ALY

HBBZEWERARB ZKA - K
SENBEFEAZSHREAQF
EHRE -

BB F E A% F
RERRMEL 2% BB

BAEME -

DR & FRBHEE S H O
T
HE—
 REWRARA RS
BRDE G BT oA
R s,/ () -

1:r
X

FE

BB Wm /(Eﬁ?@)

z— J\E A=+— Elu:i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the
end of the reporting period.

Assuming the portfolio of the Group’s equity
investments remained unchanged, the market values
of the Group’s listed equity securities in Hong Kong as
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements were approximately HK$86,636,000. In
accordance with the respective accounting policy, the
changes in fair value will be recognised in profit or loss
subsequent to the year end.

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 18 April 2016, the Group subscribed unsecured,
three-year maturity 2% coupon convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$12,000,000 from Deson
Construction International Holdings Limited (“Deson”), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds has:

i) an option to request Deson to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued and
unpaid interest at the date of redemption on 17
April 2019 or the occurrence of other conditions
as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement; and

ii) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of Deson at the conversion
price based on certain conditions on the date of
conversion as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned
options, were designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss and recognised at fair

values.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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B A TTEIR)

15 BAFEFABECSRMEE

(#&)

(a)

(b)

REBZEWRAES(E)

FARAEFES Z A FERZHHAR
B 2P EMR K GEM 5 T RERE
5 o

BRAEEZ REREAAHRTT
2 RNaFEaMBEmEAMER S
AEEZRBRBZ LTRAE ST
{E#)7% 86,636,000 7T © 1R 1H
BRTBRE AVEEHBNFELS
HRBRNBEER -

REBZF LT ARKRES

RZZE-—R"RFEA+TN\B A&E
FEREREREEBRAR(#
BB ZFGEM ET AR ) RE
BEFR=FHRE2% 2 THKRE
% N® /512,000,000 % 7T ©

REB(ERABRKRESHBEA)E
A

) AREEERR-_T-NF
MA+ERIHERRERE
W A E 2 B R B AR R
BOARRES AR BRI R
BT RARBNE 2 EEE
54

i) RERSRERBBETRE
RRETIRE > RBBAHN
BRER I RRESBSR LS
REBBZERE -

TRBAS R LR BT AR
AFEIAREZ SBAE - W&
ATFERA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A 8RN - 19 AETTIIR)
16 Trade and other receivables 16 EWESREREMERRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEWE 558 329,571 249,794
Less: allowance for doubtful debts R REREHE (W 16(b))
(note 16(b)) (6,139) (3,350)
323,432 246,444
Other receivables H b e U sk I8 79,050 97,185
Prepayments and deposits TENFIERES 50,830 45,536
129,880 142,721
Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and SAREBR 2 EbEWZIE - FBNRAK
deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting BEhIReAHES AHHEREME
to approximately HK$40,816,000 (2017: HK$39,410,000), % #4740,816,000/8 (= & — + 4 :
which are expected to be recovered or recognised as 39,410,000/ 7T ) » FEHIRN BB —FE I
expenses after more than one year. All of the other trade CleliER AR - TEEMERE 518
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or REMERZFIBTEEA N —E Rk E S fER
recognised as expenses within one year. =T
Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts S AREE 7 H Al FE U T IE A e UG e 2
due from slimming business partners and consultants of FEEE R EAR 2 A 464,807,000 7T
approximately HK$64,807,000 (2017: HK$87,039,000), (Z=—+%F : 87,039,00078 7T ) (kxR
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately R 4914,796,000 8 T (ZE—+ 4 -
HK$14,796,000 (2017: HK$14,794,000) and advances to 14,794,000/ )& ) RAE T8 2
staff of approximately HK$1,346,000 (2017: HK$1,315,000). IE 491,346,000/ T(=— & — + F -

1,315,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16 Trade and other receivables (Continuead)

(a)

(b)

7 .

Ageing analysis

BEAETHN

B TTHIR)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date

and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Less than 1 month
1 to 2 months

1
More than 2 months but %

less than 4 months
More than 4 months but

less than 12 months
More than 12 months

LR 1EA
=21@A
RoEA B AEA

12M&8 A A E

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days

from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are

recorded using an allowance account unless the Group

is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in

which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade receivables directly (see note 2(n)(i)).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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16 BWEZFEREEVRIE

(%)
(@) BRERDMT

REHIMKR - BRE SR (ER
SR MR RREBR) 2BREeD

ZHRAEAEBLR121EA

W :
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E 5
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
318,990 241,292
1,902 783
1,607 248
60 445
873 3,676
323,432 246,444

JEWE SZIE—RABEEASR
S0ZEQ0HEIH - AEEEEBKRZ
E—HEIBER M EE28() °

(b) EWEZKEBERME

FEURE 5 518 2 R (B KT 1B 5 BB
BRECEE - BRIEAE B MU B Z K
BZAIREERRIE - FERZIBR T © R
EEEEEREWRE ZZEME(R
BEsE 2(n)(i)) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16 Trade and other receivables (Continuead)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

At 1 April RO A—H
Impairment loss recognised BR . REEE
Reversal of impairment loss REBERE
Exchange adjustments [ H K

At 31 March R=A=+—H

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$6,139,000 (2017: HK$3,350,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in default in payments and management
assessed that the recoverability of the amount is
remote. Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$6,139,000 (2017: HK$3,350,000) was
recognised.

(BB AR - BB THIR)

16 BWEZ AR HE M EKFRIE

[N
i

FEWE 5 RIERE(E)

7 REEBE(EERARES
R ZHBMT -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,350 855
3,685 2,557
(1,210) -

314 (62)

6,139 3,350

R-ZZE—-N\EFZA=Z+—R8  &&
E 2 fE Y E 5 I8 476,139,000 /%
7T(=—Z —+4F : 3,350,000/ 7T )
WEBEE AT RE- %@
BEERKKREBEEHEZEOANRZEFRE
B mEREN G EERRIEZ
AR ERIE e Bt - KRR R
%6,139,0008 T(= T — £ F:
3,350,000/870) B MR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385N - BB TIIR)
16 Trade and other receivables (Continueq) 16 EWESREREMERRIE
(%)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) UW|EBEZEWESZRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither B4 (] Bl 78 A B b 4 AR AE S TR
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is BEzRERRESHRBAZER TN
as follows: T:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired BR 48 B I TR 320,251 229,209
Less than 1 month past due mEAD R 1 (E A 3,106 12,805
1 to 2 months past due mEA1 = 2@ A — 739
More than 2 months but BmEZ R 2 B AR
less than 4 months past due PR A4EA - 38
More than 4 months but BEAZ R AEAE
less than 12 months past due L1218 A - 237
More than 12 months past due BHA12 8 A LA | 75 3,416
3,181 17,235
323,432 246,444
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BEEa i N R (B 2 BN GRIE B %
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there HIWET R RS s BRE AR -
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B EYERE L EWNHNIAEES
to a number of independent customers that have a ERAEEHBRIFABELHTE
good track record with the Group. Based on past VEFEE - REBEBALR AR
experience, management believes that no impairment EEEETES KEE - BERD
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as WRATEEKE  WEEERE
there has not been a significant change in credit quality BEMZEEHEL RERE -

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #ak Mi5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

17 Loans and interest receivables 17 ERERERE
The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the AEFERKEREFBEEREBREER
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong TARRRIZEREMB AR 2 MEXEBE
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group o REBB BB EEHEREERKE
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans HERFMEUZEREEERR - BEEET
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue B M A A 65 -

balances are reviewed regularly by management.

2018 2017
“E-N\F —E+F
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXR#Bo ANEBS st EXBH FEHH 5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FHET FHET
Loans secured by EAER
personal guarantees 2 EHER 13,723 83 13,806 8,721 107 8,828
Unsecured loans BHEER 42,093 328 42,421 51,200 281 51,481
55,816 411 56,227 59,921 388 60,309
Current portion SITRRENEE
included under BN BN
current assets i (55,776) (411) (56,187) (59,921) (388) (60,309)
Amounts due after 1 FIRRIEREE
year included under  EIE T2
non-current assets FRIHz
oA 40 - 40 - - -
Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from FEWEZUEFNENFI0EEZ42E(=
10% to 42% (2017: 8% to 54%) per annum and repayable T—+F :8EE54E ) B BHEARE
on maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on AAMEGERNI RS AEEEZEE
demand in writing by the Group. KIEE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

17 Loans and interest receivables (Continueq)

17 BIRERRFIL

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due AERERNEBAZRROITAOT ¢
dates:
2018 2017
“E-N\E S e
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERBo FEHS @t EXHn FHEHs w@Et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE FET FET FETL
Neither past due nor ~ BF 1 12 75
impaired mRE 55,816 351 56,167 58,421 388 58,809
Less than 1 month  @HLM1{ER
past due - 49 49 1,500 - 1,500
1to 3 months past ~ @EF1 Z3{E A
due - 11 11 - - -
- 60 60 1,500 - 1,500
55,816 41 56,227 59,921 388 60,309

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed
by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.

In respect of loans and interest receivables which
have been past due, the amounts mainly represent
occasional delay in repayment and they were fully
settled subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the management is of the opinion that
no impairment allowance on these individual loans is
necessary.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A :ERESN - LB ITHIR)

18

19

20

Amounts due from/to related parties

Amounts due from: FEN IR -
— related companies (note) — BERR(HE)

— a holder of non-controlling interest

Amounts due to: FEFIE -

— a director of a subsidiary
— a holder of non-controlling interest

Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over
these related companies.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Bank loans

The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured
by pledge of certain trade receivables of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$222,396,000 (2017:
HK$143,342,000) and personal guarantee by a director of a
subsidiary.

Details on interest rate profile of the Group are set out in
note 28(c).

Trade and other payables

Trade payables BB 55/

Other payables and accrued charges

18

— FFIERESRAA

— —HNBARIZ —RES -
— FFIEBESRFAA

19

20

HAib e IR N ERH B

FEUR,FE{SBAEE A R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

177 1,428

2 2

179 1,430
22,633

16,246 14,675
16,246 37,308

Mat ETHBAREETURSEWER AR

EAYEN -
R ENEEATTRAEEN 28
RBRBERER

o

RITER

RITERER—FAREE  WAERLRE
EE T W E 551849 222,396,000 8 7T
(ZZ—+4F : 143,342,000 7T ) & —
MEAR 2 —REEZBAERERR -

BERAAREE 2 F &R RS SN
28(c) °

ENEZFEREMEN KA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
52,983 38,938
132,702 130,449
185,685 169,387
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5

20 Trade and other payables (Continued)

21

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting
period:

Due within 1 month or on demand

Amount due to a director

At 31 March 2018, the amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley, is unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

At 31 March 2017, the amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley, was unsecured and repayable on demand.
Apart from a loan of HK$20,000,000 which was interest-
bearing at 2% per annum, the amount due to the director
was interest free.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
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20 BENEZFEREMENKE

A1 LA R 225k 3

21

(&)

FIT 6 & B 5 508 I L At AN SOR TR B
R—FREE KR RBBA AR E KA
j\% o

VAT Rt A BB 5508 K EAf - 3IR
ZENESHRER2RPRZ Rl DT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TIET
52,983 38,938

BN —BESFHIEA

RZZE-N\EF=ZA=+—H ERESFFK
FME L2 AR EEN - 2 RERE

RZZBE—+F=RA=+—HB ENEEK
EMBLcRARBERMRAZERE
& o B} & 520,000,000 7T A F FI K 2
EE BN BNEEFERRE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

22 Income tax in the consolidated statement 22 ZMEMBMRRERAZFAER
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) MHEEMBERRRAZEHHE
financial position represents: i
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FREBE (Kt 6(a) - 14,422
— Provisional tax paid — B EHR (296) (427)
(296) 13,095
— Balance of profit tax provision — BRABEFENSHEG
relating to prior year wEeR 9,913 2,766
9,617 16,761
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EMSH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FREE (W7 6() 11,223 10,445
— Provisional tax paid — BEEH (7,981) (8,638)
3,242 1,807
12,859 18,568
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Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB BRI © BT
(Exp g g

22 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax asising from:

At 1 April 2016
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2017
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2018

LUTREMELZ
EERIE :

—E-RFNA—H

%’
At
|

+tE=ZA=+—

R-ZZFE—tFMA—H

RZEBE—NF=Z/=1+—

(i) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2018, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of approximately HK$39,437,000 (2017:

HK$27,951,000).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 Z#ZRERA
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22 MEHMBMRARAZFABE (&)

(b) IEFEFIE
() CEEFZEEHEER:
REFE TR RER ZIELEF 8
BEBDENFERNZEBHINT ¢

Depreciation

in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
T MBS
wERE HMERES a&H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
931 3,076 4,007
(57) (189) (246)
H 874 2,887 3,761
874 2,887 3,761
93 309 402
H 967 3,196 4,163

(i) KREZELEHEEE -

R-_ZE—NFZA=Z+—8 &%
5] I f8% s By 22 BH 4V 39,437,000 7
(= Z—+ 4 : 27,951,000 7T )
BRELEHIEEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22

23

(BR5AEHIN - HLAETIIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)
(iii) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2018, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$305,022,000 (2017:
HK$256,364,000) and deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$24,742,000 (2017:
HK$15,516,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits, against which the assets can be utilised, will be
available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the
total tax losses, approximately HK$145,606,000 (2017:
HK$109,968,000) will expire within 5 years and the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$159,416,000
(2017: HK$146,395,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and
the eligible employees are each required to make monthly
mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
MPF scheme. At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

22

23

mePBHmERME

mEMBRRRAZFFER @)

(b) EFEBLIA(E)

(iii) FERELEBEELE -
R-ZZE-NFZA=Z=+—8" > #HR
FEEMBEETEB A EZERNXE S
TRABEE RREREF A B
BEE MASEITERLZFTH
T8 & 18 #47305,022,000 (= &
— + % 1 256,364,0007%8 T ) & A]
H0RCE B &= B 49 24,742,000 TT
(Z=Z —+ % :15,516,0007% 7T )
WRELEHBEE - HIEBESL
%8 h - #9145,606,00078 T(— &
— 4+ % : 109,968,000 7T ) # %
AFARER MBERTHEBED
159,416,000 jt(Z & — £ F -
146,395,000 /870 ) IRIEIRTHE I
mEmA -

SREMRFTRIKETE

AEBERBEEERIERTE A EIGD A
RIEEBRRBEO([ZGEH])RDEE
IR zEERIEHEATESF (%8
Eestdl]) - BESHIR/BEBITEA
B 7 ERBEFRKGTE - RIFWES T
g AREETHBRRIRAEREERS
BAREEBBARZS%RAEHELE
HBHIMEHR - B 2 BFEHR RS
& A MBI A 30,0008 7T - M&HEI1EH
ZHRENE R -

RZE-—NER_ZE—+F=ZA=+—
H AEBEETREEEEKZENETZ
HERBEH  TEERAESERIEZE
RESRIARBE -  NEEEBLKILER
BRZIEPIIEEZIBER T HBEERNMNK - M
BEAISEBU TR LillAESFE
BE -RZE-—N\FRZE—tF=H
=+—8 ' AEERRESFEEL 2 #
RREZFAFEBaBETEZENET
ZERBIEBILE -
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23

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -
Defined contribution retirement plans

24

(Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

(@) Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
on 4 November 2003 (the “Expired Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Expired Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants of
the Expired Share Option Scheme include full-time or
part-time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants, agents
or advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have
contributed to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Expired Share Option
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003
(Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Expired Share Option
Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Expired Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Expired Share
Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise
of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the highest of (i) the official
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

(B BRI - BT

5IR)

mE P BwRME

24 EBREERGARRZ (#2)

(a)

R-EZE=F+-ANBRHAZE
BRREET BI(42)

RIFEE EmEIRER 8 AR FME
] HC 4th B8 AR 4 51 B BE IR %2 BB R 7T
2B RETFEEREEITERE
AREEIT RN ESEE - N5
BTRFE BT 2 30% ©

BEITERO RREC EmBRE
&) S AR AT AR H A BE AR R &l )
ERERZEARLBERE(EHEE
1T~ BREiH R REITE 2 B AAE)
BTER A RER T 2 IR D A8 - 1
REZEE LB B EA+ = E A H
FEEREAMEHITRNBE Z
1% » BIZR 2 )78 BE 1 35 48 K 3 BR
BARBBRRNBIRAE LHE -

RECERBRESSRE AW
FEBRE HRERMDZITEE
(BETEERESSN)ERES
ERBRTE  WZERTEER)
BRORBZEBBR(NEREER)E
B X BT A R T2 IE T E ¢
(A EEERE A BA A EE
¥PEBMRAAREKMBZ FHK
TE: Ri)ROEEUESER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the New Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants of
the New Share Option Scheme include full-time or
part-time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed
to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the New Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of a share.

19 LA IT

5II7R)

24 &

(b)
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BTG AR B B AR ER 8 &
AAREREMBRESEINSE
ER2EARLEREBRRERNT
£ Bk AEITE BRE)
BITER R RE BT 2 IR 4B 8 - i
REEZERE B 8IEFA+=EA 5
MEBEEAPERTRMEE 2
1% » BIZRA RZE B L 35 HY 3 g1 30 HR
BARABRFENREAE ELE -

BEFERESERL 2AAEE
B ERBROH2ITEECERE
TEERERGN) ERESS 2R
HRIE ﬁ&FWT?ﬁWU%@%
R AH(KNEREXR )R A
B3RZFTHR 2 ERWTE ;5 (i) 1D
MREER L B EIAT A (E S 2 8 7
RFTBHMEMFz FHETE: &
(i) RO EE(LEREERLE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B AN - B ITIIR)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions 24 BRLEERONRRXEF @)
(Continued)
() The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (c) REZE-Z—N\HFR-Z—tHF=
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are B=+t—BLEEREZBHBKER
as follows: RAGHEWOT :

Options granted to directors:
— on 10 March 2016

Options granted to Chief Executive
Officer
— on 10 March 2016

Options granted to suppliers/
consultants:
— on 22 February 2012

Total share options

Number of Contractual life
options of options

BRERE BREZSHTFH

BTEE 2 HERE
- RZZE—ARF=A+H 18,211,359 5.0 years

BPITHARE 2 R

— RIE—RNF=A+H 18,211,359 5.0 years

RYHEn, Bl
R
— RZET—=F
—A=-+=H 6,894,300 5.0 years %

R ERE 43,317,018
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

The number and weighted average exercise prices

eI RR M

24 BEEERONRRZ #)

(d BREBERMNEFHITEED

of share options are as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
g1 IniEF 15
TEE BREZE 1T1R(E  BRERE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the REFHARITE
beginning of the year 0.1320 36,422,718 0.1784 43,317,018
Expired during the year R R E|HA N/A REA — 0.4239  (6,894,300)
Outstanding at the end AL ARITE
of the year 0.1320 36,422,718 0.1320 36,422,718
Exercisable at the end ~ RFLRATITE
of the year 0.1320 36,422,718 0.1320 36,422,718

The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had an
exercise price of HK$0.1320 (2017: HK$0.1320) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.94
years (2017: 3.94 years ).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on a Binomial Lattice model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
model.

()

R_ZE—N\FZA=Z+—BHEKRT
B AR 2 1T 8 A0.1320%8 7T
(ZZ—+4:0.1320/87T) © MniE
FHFRBENFHRAR2UFE(ZF
—+F 1 3.94%F) -

BREAFERRR

FE IR B R 2 2 RS A F
BN2EMEHBEREZ A FER
B DEROBREZAFEMBR
“IRAREE RN A - BAUE
BHFHRAZEAZBARE - &
BACERHRRETEZES -
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7 .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions

BBAEEAI - HUBTIIR)

24 EBREEROGARXRZ (#)

(Continued)

(e) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The number and exercise prices of the options and
the share price of these options at the grant date as
disclosed in (c), (d) and (e) above are adjusted to reflect
the effect of share consolidation, which was completed
on 23 September 2016 (see note 27(a)(ii).

25 Other liabilities

On 28 December 2012, the Company, Bravo Media Limited
(“BML”) and Beauty University Management Limited (“BUML”)
entered into an investment agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the independent third party
subscribed new shares in BUML, representing 20% of
the enlarged issued share capital of BUML, at a cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000. Further details of this
transaction were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 December 2012.

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment
agreement, BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML
which is wholly-owned by the Company. Upon the issue
of new shares in BUML on 28 March 2013, the Group’s
effective interest in BUML was reduced from 100% to
80%. This change in the Group’s interest in BUML did not
result in a loss of control over BUML and was accounted
for as an equity transaction, whereby adjustments were
made to reflect an increase in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue
of the new shares in BUML.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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25.

() BREQAFERBR(E)

BN 3 (c) + (d) K (e) IHEE - BEARIE
HE RITEBURZEBBRERR
FTHBZREEARE  UARENZ
T-RFNAZ+T=ZBEXZ2EH
ABH(RIE27() ) 2 2 -

Ht&E

RZE——HF+-_A=-+/1B AR7 -
Bravo Media Limited ([BML])RZEEX
BEBERAT([EBARE])EBFIE=
FRINIREHE - Bt BUE=F LR
4+ L {820,000,000 8 TREEBAE Y
R - AEBARBEEASEHITRAZ
20% ° RIBR G2 #E—FFHBERA AT
HfA-Z——F+-_A_-+ N \BZAMH
A o

BBERERZRETTRGOA  EBEKRE
ABMLZ2EAMWEB AR MBMLAAR
RIZEEMBAR - WM_E—=F=A
ZHNBBITEBEREHRME A%
EREBERZBZEBRERBI100% B E
80% - AEBREBAEHEZ 2 Z2HE
PUWmERREAIERE 2 EHIE =
BEBARIARERS  WEELH
B URBRBEITEEBREFRMNEAR
#13,508,000 7 7T 2 FE45 IR 7 38 0 K2 49
16,492,000 /70,2 H A IE N o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &S B iR MIsT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx %A EEN HIR)

25 Other liabilities (Continuea) HEE s

Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that
BUML fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing
of the shares of an entity holding the business of BUML
on an internationally recognised stock exchange with the
market capitalisation size of such listing of not less than
HK$200,000,000 on or before 28 December 2017, the
independent third party shall have the right,

obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of the

but not an

BIFEERE  MEBREBRER
—tF+ A+ NBAEBSKZARELE
KR BEIERRA n%*%ﬁﬁt?ﬁﬁm—#ﬁ
EBAEBEK 2EBZ2RONBEKER
*’*"?&%ﬁﬁim(ﬁﬁﬁimzmafm;e%
S{K 7 200,000,000 7T) + BB =
E%ﬁ%ﬂ(\ﬁ#f&ﬂxX$ AR

IEASREBYE= T 2EmAEMN N

shares of BUML then held by the independent third party B BT (E om BRAE (TR R HAME DR
for HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days 2 EMECBANREHAEBIME ) A

from the receipt of the written notice by BUML from the
independent third party to communicate its intent to exercise
the Put Option Right (the “Put Option Notice Period”). If the
Company fails to purchase all of the shares of BUML then
held by the independent third party for HK$20,000,000
within the Put Option Notice Period, BML and/or the
Company shall be obligated to take up and fulfill BUML's
obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the
Put Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under the
Put Option Right has been accounted for as other liabilities
in the consolidated and Company’s statement of financial

20,000,000 B L EZERHEBILE=H
RBEZMBEBRERS - MARFIREE
%éﬁj\fﬁﬁﬁ%L%ﬂHﬂWJ/\/ﬁO 000,000 7t
BEZRABIE = EHEZP)’Tﬁ%%K
2% BMLE /A REBEERR
s HAE R A B R EERT Q0 B A AEE R ETT
EBARBIRIBIRE 173 5t 5804 i i R &
EZEMT ARERARBRRGHEE
T2 B EaE R FE 16,444,000 TR R
B RARAMBRARANARIIEEME
B HMBREZEBRFNERBL400E -
%zi_Yf/\i A=+—BLLtFE-

HwaFEzmEFE 763,000 (==

position. The effective interest rate of the other liabilities is —+4F : 740,000 L) Rér S Bm R TE
4.00% per annum. During the year ended 31 March 2018, RBEEB -

an imputed interest on the other liabilities of HK$763,000

(2017: HK$740,000) is recognised as finance costs in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On 27 March 2018, as the Put Option Notice Period RZE—NF=ZA-_++tH BARR
had been expired, the fair value of gross liability of HHEBMBERER REaBE2AF

HK$16,444,000 and cumulative imputed interest of
HK$3,556,000 were derecognised.

516,444,000 T M 25 H E F B
3,556,000 8 7T B JE 4L | TERR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

26 Convertible notes

26 TRRKRESF

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued a three-year,
2% per annum convertible note with a principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 (the “CN”) to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley,
a director of the Company. Interest is payable annually in
arrears.

The director has the right to convert, on any business day
from the date of issue of the CN until 5 business days before
the maturity date, being 20 December 2016, the whole
or part only, in multiples of HK$1,000,000 of the principal
amount of the CN, into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.272 (adjusted for the share
consolidation which was completed on 23 September 2016
(see note 27(a)(ii).

As the CN had not been converted, it had been redeemed
by the Company on 20 December 2016. The director would
not demand for repayment of the amount owing prior to
20 March 2017. As such, the amount had been converted
into an unsecured loan due to the director and transferred
to “amount due to a director”. It continued to bear interest
at 2% per annum. The CN issued had been split as to the
liability and equity components, as follows:

RZE—=F+ZF=+H AAFMH
ARREFREMBLIETALEA
20,000,000/87 * = FHRFMK2E Y
ABRREE(ARREE]) B3N
ATEAFIS. ©

ZAEEBEERNIRREERZITARRE
ZIHAR =T —A"F+ZA=1+H)A
S5E=% B HMEMEEE - 120.2728
TZEBREBER-_ZT—"FLA=+=
A5 2 DA fHEL T (R KT E27(a)
(i) BB ER 2 PR BHER AR
A AR (241,000,000 87T 2 f520) -

RN AR RR AR ES SR - ARBER
“E-RETAZTABERERLD - &
FREFETEEREEN_FT—LF=A
—+BAAERFIR - Bt - ZHECE
BRRNZESCEENERTERE
(BN —REFHIA]  HERFENETF2
BErE - ERTTZABMBRERE O REE
KEZMED - FEWT

HK$’000

FET

At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—RFNA—H 19,759
Effective interest expense BERF SR 641
Interest paid BAFE (400)
Transfer to amount due to a director EREREN—RESHNE (20,000)

Liability component at 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=A=+—HZABEIH —

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the relevant equity
component of HK$1,214,000 was transferred from
convertible notes reserve to retained profits upon
redemption. The effective interest rate of the liability
component was 4.11% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

27 BEX - #ERKRE

27 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Share capital (@) B
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZERERITKRAE
Number of
shares
RGOEE
Note ‘000 HK$’000
HtaF FHE FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2016 of RZZE—RFMNA
HK$0.01 each —HEREE
0.01/87T 10,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation f& & B 27(a)(ii) (5,000,000) —
Increase in authorised A FE AR
share capital 27(a)(ii) 15,000,000 300,000
At 31 March 2017, RZE—+F=H
1 April 2017 and =t—8 ==
31 March 2018 of —tFMA—H
HK$0.02 each F_ZE-NE=
A=+—H8k
E{E0.027T 20,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: SRTRHR :
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMA
—H 3,642,272 36,422
Share consolidation f&tn& oF 27(a)(ii) (1,821,136) —
Issue of shares BITRG 27(a)(iv) 3,642,272 72,846
At 31 March 2017, RZZE—tF=H
1 April 2017 and =+—Aa ==
31 March 2018 —tFMA—H
EZE-—NF=
A=+—AH 5,463,408 109,268

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EARRFAABERRRTEE
2 BLE - BB
RARBARE LR —F - A
EBRERARRZRBEER
BREZEMAL -
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting hold on 22
September 2016, every 2 issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of
HK$0.02 each (the “Share Consolidation”).
Following the Share Consolidation which has
become effective on 23 September 2016, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$100,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.02 each, of which 1,821,135,954
shares were in issue and fully paid.

Increase in authorised share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 23 January
2017, the Company’s authorised share capital
was increased from HK$100,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
to HK$400,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each by creation of
additional 15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.02 each.

Issue of shares in 2017

On 3 March 2017, the Company issued
3,642,271,908 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per ordinary
share (the “Rights Issue”), resulting in net
proceeds of approximately HK$352,354,000.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$NIl).
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(a)

(b)

A (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RE

BRG & v

BERZZE—R"FLA=Z+=
ARTZERENRE LR
BeLTBRER HoRE
fEEECOIE T ZEHITR
KBEITEZBEBRESHF AR
FREECRE T ZHE
BR(OBROEH]D - RZF
—XNEANA=-+t=84%582
RmeadE  XRARZEE
A% ZS & 100,000,000 % JT(5
/%5,000,000,000 % & A% =
B2 zlm) He
1,821,135,954 % & 10 & B %
TRERE -

EIEERA

BER-E—tF—A=+=
AzBRERIAE LEB
CEBREFR BBHBEBH
15,000,000,000 % & f% M &
0028 L zEBEK  ARA
2R TE B% 8 5 100,000,000 7
7£(% 75,000,000,000 f%
FAEE0.02/8 L2 EiBAk )12
Hn = 400,000,000 7t(H A
20,000,000,000 f% & A% @ &
0.02/8BL 2 EMAZ) °

R-FE—tFRTRE

R-ZE—+F=A=H " AR
AEEREERKIOETLZ
R (B %17 3,642,271,908 %
% E (E0.0278 T 2 &A%
(TR ) - EEFBRIEEE
49352,354,000 7 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the
aggregate amount of the value of the premiums
on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account. The application of the share
premium account is governed by the Companies
Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in
a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(aa).

(B BRI - BT

5IR)

mE P BwRME

27 BX - #ERRE (%)

(c) REMHEREW

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RO EERFE

RIFFEHEARE - LAH
s BT - T AHRER
ReHMRRE HAF—%
MERERD <& EEEARE
ZHRBEBABRMEER - B
s BRIMAEFSRRDAE
ME -

BRIFEBEEZE D IRSOR S
BER - NARBAINEBE
AEEFEETINEERE
% BAAFARDEERA
ARABER 7RSS

B R

ABHRBEARRETEEK
ZHERARRRER -ZTFT
=Ft-ANRAZEEEAR
SRR MDA A E R R
AR G ERRRE 2 Z
B E—THBHERNARFR
HA—ZT=Ft+—AtRHZ

ARER -

EL#E

ERRERRERERINER
AMEHRERMEEZFBEL
ER o B RIEN E2a)FT
B GRTRREIE -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA A

Annual Report 2017/18 &£ EH &

167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note
2(w).

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the
amount allocated to the unexercised equity
component of the convertible notes issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in
note 2(s).

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset retained
profits or increase capital. The appropriation for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$2,994,000 (2017: HK$2,658,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2017: HK$Nil).
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R 00 5 R Rt s FE AR IR BT 5 2(w)
SRAR D (5 SRR 2 & 5T BRER A
AR THERETEAERS
HE 2 BERSMEFRITERBR
BHBEZAFE-

RREEEE

A REEEEREME
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AR EERITERER D
T e

B L ERE

BIREERBME LR RE
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to profit or loss and included in other
payables and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between
the fair value of the consideration received and
the carrying amount of the net assets of BUML
attributable to the non-controlling interests; (i) the
fair value of gross liability of written put option
issued by the Company in connection with the
disposal of 20% equity interest in BUML that do
not result in a loss of control by the Group (see
note 25); and (iii) the excess of the fair value of
consideration received for the disposal of 25%
equity interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
over the increase in the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interest.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$426,978,000 (2017:
HK$436,896,000).

5IR)

27 BX - #ERRE (%)

(c)

(d)

RELHERBEN(E)
(i) HEZEEREBERE(E)

BTN K2R E S (E A AF
TEMBARREEZEN - D
EZBTHRMNMERESET
BB REES 2 ISEEF
He MBEABRBME » DA
B - Wit ARSI
AR TR 2 H At A 5RIR M FE AT
B -

(vii) EfbEE

HibFEE () BBRREATE
HEBRIEERER 2 EBR
EEEFEROEME ZE
B ()ARAHEEERE
20% IR A #5 M BT E EaR0A
BB (T BAEEKRET
)z REEs ATFERK
FE25) ki)t E—fHER
B M B R 7] 25% A% 7 HE 25 P
WERE 2 AT EBERIEE
BE i s BR B 2 318 2 2258 o

<
PN

A 2 IRt

RZZE—NFZA=Z+—8 > &R
AIAHDIRTARBHEB A ZFEE
49 /426,978,000 T(Z T — +
£F 1 436,896,000/8 L) °
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure on the basis of net debt-to-capital
ratio of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank loans, trade payables, other payables and
accrued charges, amount due to a director, amounts
due to related parties and other liabilities, less cash
and cash equivalents; and capital, which comprises all
components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amounts due from related parties and cash and cash
equivalents. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also
has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
31 March 2018, the Group had a certain concentration
of credit risk as 40% (2017: 18%) and 73% (2017: 61%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from trade debtors that have not been provided for
other than impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt
as set out in note 16(b). Further quantitative disclosure
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade receivables are set out in note 16.

The Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2018
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to approximately HK$68,190,000 (2017:
HK$90,646,000) in total. Should the counter parties
default in settling the payments and/or providing
services, the Group may suffer financial losses.
However, the directors consider that these amounts are
fully recoverable.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages
and analyses the credit risk for each of the new and
existing borrowers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. If there is no independent
rating, the Group assesses the credit quality of the
borrower based on the borrower’s financial position,
past experience and other factors. For loans principal
exceeding a predetermined amount, the Group holds
collateral against these loans receivable and interest
receivables in the form of guarantee executed by the
guarantor. Individual risk limits are set based on the
value of collaterals provided by borrowers, if required,
and internal or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the directors. The credit quality classification of
loans receivable and their respective interest receivables
as at 31 March 2018 using the Group’s credit rating
system is set out in the table below:

Performing BiTH
Doubtful RER
Loss B8

The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as doubtful if the repayment of principal
and/or of interest has been overdue and principal,
accrued interest and/or future interest may not be
fully secured by the collaterals. The Group considers
the loans and respective interest receivables as loss if
the repayment of principal and/or of interest has been
overdue for more than 12 months and the collection of
principal and/or of interest in full is improbable.

(BR5AEHIN - HLAETIIR)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses
for the loans and interest receivables considered as
“doubtful” and “loss”, taking into account of the fair
values of collaterals which are inadequate to cover
the loans and interest receivables. The amount of
doubtful and loss of loans and interest receivables
were HK$60,000 (2017: HK$1,500,000) as at 31 March

2018.

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping
together all its receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics. The impairment review is carried out
on all those loans and interest receivables based on
the historical impairment rates. Since the historical
impairment rate is zero during the current year, the
management therefore considers that the collective
impairment loss is HK$Nil as at 31 March 2018.

The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by
the management on a monthly basis.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 18% (2017: 33%) and 70%
(2017: 93%) of the Group’s loans receivable balance
respectively as at 31 March 2018.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from
the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the
collaterals held, if required.

In respect of amounts due from related parties at 31
March 2018 amounting to approximately HK$179,000
(2017: HK$1,430,000), the Group may suffer financial
losses if related parties default in settling the payments.
However, the directors consider that these amounts are
fully recoverable.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies and stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputation.

The Group’s investments which are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
together with certain deposits, are placed with
securities brokers, which management believes it is of
higher credit quality.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 SRITAZERAREERA
of financial instruments (Continued) SN )
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FBESEM(E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRHAMAER LB ER 2R
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the KB TAYEER R4 K,
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the NIRRT E(BEERE O =R
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (i FENIEN2HRPR ZRITH X
payments, computed using contractual rates or, if STEZRBENF) RAREEAGEES
floating, based on rates current at the end of the 7 &EEHER
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2018 2017
—E-)N\f “T-tfF
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
Carrying undiscounted oron Carrying  undiscounted oron
amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
ELEN ) 15/ BARHER TER,
BEE HReRBsR EZX FHE Rensg® EEX
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 A7 A7 A7 A7 T
Bank loans RITER 99,976 99,976 99,976 67,731 67,731 67,731
Trade payables ERERTE 52,983 52,983 52,983 38,938 38,938 38,938
Other payables and accrued Ef N B R
charges ER 132,702 132,702 132,702 130,449 130,449 130,449
Amount due to a director BR—REEHE 562 562 562 20,338 20,338 20,338
Amounts due to related parties  ERBEALIE 16,246 16,246 16,246 87,308 87,308 87,308
Other liabilties Hit R - - - 19,037 20,000 20,000
302,469 302,469 302,469 314,001 314,764 314,764
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits, loans receivable and bank loans. Deposits
placed and borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.

(i)

Interest rate profile

(BR5AEHIN - HLAETIIR)

F{E®)

(c) FIZEE R

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits

less net interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice

versa) at the end of the reporting period.

Variable rate
deposits:

Bank deposits and
cash at bank

Net fixed rate
borrowings:
Loans receivable
Amount due to a
director
Bank loans

Total net deposits

FRER

RITIFR IR
TR

JEUE

EN—RES
IR

RITER

mePBHmERME
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AEEZNERERIERAERTHE
K BRERRBITER - EFR
ZERRBEIEBRERBLZER
DRl REEARRERENXR
R FENERRER NEEEE
BEEERZMEREASEN TX() -

(i) FFEHE
TRFMASERZFHRER 2
5 50F B (B R 1T 17 3RO T B
THEEFE R2TA)Z
FIMEA o
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERA=E ERF =%
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FET FET
1.97% 110,102 1.22% 123,279
10% - 42% 55,816 8% - 54% 59,921
N/A 7EAH - 2.00% (20,000)
4.36% (99,976) 5.32% (67,731)
(44,160) (27,810)
65,942 95,469
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after
tax and increased/decreased the Group’s retained
profits by approximately HK$826,000 (2017:
HK$925,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected (2017: HK$NIl) by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-
tax and retained profits assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (see note 15).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities
and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set

by the Group.

At 31 March 2018,
decrease of 5% (2017: 5%) in equity price, with all

it is estimated that an increase/

other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately HK$4,854,000 (2017:
HK$4,905,000). Other components of consolidated
equity would not be affected (2017: HK$NIil).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis shall be
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 £RiTAZERAREERA
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Y& #)

() 2APEFEE)

Financial assets measured at fair value () BRAFEFEZLHEEE)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value

NFEER(E)

TREAAEESRTAZ A

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial FEFEER

instruments:

At 31 March 2018

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong

Unlisted convertible
bonds in Hong Kong

Unlisted equity fund
outside Hong Kong

At 31 March 2017

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong

Unlisted convertible
bonds in Hong Kong

Unlisted equity fund
outside Hong Kong

R-ZE—NF
=A=+-—H

REBZ LMK
REBZIFLT
A ES
BRI E
mARAES

RZE—+HF
=A=t-~8

REBZ LMK
REBZIFLT
AR ES
BRI E

Fair value measurement

AP EHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rl 4 -t 1} E=R et

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET ~ FET  TET  FER

116,271 = - 116,271
= = 11,911 11,911
_ 9,717 = 9,717
116,271 9,717 11,911 137,899
117,493 — - 117,493
— — 14,309 14,309
— 7,944 - 7,944
117,493 7,944 14,309 139,746
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted equity fund was
determined with reference to the net asset value
of the fund which are provided by the broker.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted convertible bonds
of approximately HK$11,911,000 (2017:
HK$14,309,000) as at 31 March 2018 represents
the aggregate of the fair value of the bonds as if
they do not include a conversion option and fair
value of the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the bonds as if they do not
include a conversion option is determined using
discounted cash flows method. A discount rate
of 12.05% (2017: 9.29%) is applied. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
in the convertible bonds is determined using
Binomial Lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the expected volatility. An
expected volatility of 52% (2017: 70%) is applied.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility.

The above fair values were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to
valuation carried out by an independent valuer.

Movement in fair value measurements within Level
3 during the year are as follows:

Financial assets cREE
At 1 April RO A—H
Payment for purchases BE®
Interest received EFE

Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in

profit or loss (B18), W
At 31 March R=A=+—H

The unrealised (loss)/gain above are included in
“net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” under “turnover” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( LA TR )

[

BEAETHN

29 EREBELEZERYHK

29 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financial activities

TRAMASRESHEDHELEZAEER
B EREReNMFRSED RUEHE
EZBBENEARSREEKAIAKRE
MERNAKREZGARERERTHE
REWEHELEZAE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

Amount
due to a Other Bank
director liabilities loans Total
Ef—=
BEENE HtaE RITER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FET FET
(note 21) (note 25) (note 19)
(Wist21)  (BWa#25)  (Kiat19)
At 1 April 2017 R-ZEB—+tF
MMA—H 20,338 19,237 67,731 107,306
Changes from financing cash BEBREHRELE
flows:
Proceeds from new bank FTIERITER S
borrowings RIE — — 99,976 99,976
Repayment of bank borrowings {BER1TE X — — (74,982) (74,982)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE — — (3,618) (3,618)
Repayment to a director M—REFEN (20,016) — — (20,016)
Total changes from financing MERSME
cash flows H B 405 (20,016) — 21,376 1,360
Exchange adjustments R 240 - 7,251 7,491
Other changes: Hih g :
Interest on other liabilities HEMBEZHE
(note 5(a)) (Wit 5(a) — 763 — 763
Expiration of other liabilities HivBEE® - (20,000) - (20,000)
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEZFE
(note 5(a)) (Wit 5(a) — — 3,618 3,618
Total other changes Hietghmza — (19,237) 3,618 (15,619)
At 31 March 2018 R=Z—NF
=A=+—H 562 — 99,976 100,538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #= & B # R R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)

30 Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2018 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Contracted but not provided for BRI 4B REE
— acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

15ER
1 EFRELFR

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to ten years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every one to four years
to reflect market rental. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

31 Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

30 HEiE

31

(a)

— WEME - HEkRE

(b)

R-B-—NE=A=+—HKEFT
MARGEDKERREBE 2 EREK
EMT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,424 1,424

R-ZB-NE=ZA=+—-8" R
THHECEHEENZAARE
HENSRWMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
22,962 28,576
36,438 45,343
59,400 73,919

AEEAREHEETETYELZ
AEBEA - HE-—RVSBH—E+
FAEEREHERMAE GRKE
BAHE - HENTBEE—EX
FEMEMN ARRTHEE - #
EHERRAAHES -

HRERE
R-B-—NFR-F—tFZA=+—

B AREMESAKAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

32 Business combinations

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Sun Fung Capital Limited

On 28 April 2016, Trillion Well International Finance
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, acquired the entire equity interest in Sun Fung
Capital Limited (“Sun Fung”) for a cash consideration
of HK$485,000. Sun Fung is principally engaged in the
provision of money lending services in Hong Kong.

Acquisition of Wealthy Sound Limited

On 23 May 2016, Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the
other joint venturer for the acquisition of the remaining
50% equity interest in Wealthy Sound Limited at a
cash consideration of HK$4,119,000. Upon completion
of this acquisition, Wealthy Sound Limited and its
subsidiaries (together “Wealthy Sound Group”), which
were joint ventures prior to this acquisition, became
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group’s interests in joint
ventures was treated as disposed of and reacquired at
fair value on the date of obtaining control. As a result,
a gain on remeasurement of interests in joint ventures
to fair value amounting to HK$1,663,000 has been
recognised and is included in other net income (see
note 4).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

32 ¥BEe6te)

32 Business combinations (Continued)

(c) Fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities (c) REWBHREXEZTHRIALEERE
arising from the acquisitions as at the respective BAFENT :
dates of acquisition was as follows:
2017
—E—+F
Wealthy
Sun Fung  Sound Group Total
g FEEE HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FET
Property, plant and W - R REE
equipment — 216 216
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEfTZIE « 124 REAM
other receivables JE W R IE 23 3,161 3,184
Cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIS ZHEY 5 1,343 1,348
Other payables and accrued — Hfth e {3018 [ e s+ &
charges A (138) (11,245) (11,383)
Deferred income EEUA - (2,218) (2,218)
Fair value of net identifiable  Fr&YE R Rl & & F 58
liabilities assumed ZRFEE (110) (8,743) (8,853)
Fair value of previously held @EFIHAER#ERZ
interests N¥E — 4,372 4,372
Gooduwill arising on IR E A 2 P
acquisition 595 8,490 9,085
Total consideration, satisfied AR &z R {B4a%
by cash 485 4,119 4,604
Net cash outflow/(inflow) WHELZRERE,
arising on the acquisitions: GRA) 5
Cash consideration paid BENEERE 485 4,119 4,604
Less: deposits paid in prior & - FED RS
year — (4,119) (4,119)
Less: cash and cash B P EEIR e MRS
equivalents acquired ZEY (5) (1,343) (1,348)
480 (1,343) (863)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

32 Business combinations (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
arising from the acquisitions as at the respective
dates of acquisition was as follows: (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$50,000 arising from
acquisition was included in “general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The goodwill arising on these acquisitions was
attributable to the expected synergies, earnings
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of the acquirees. These benefits were not
recognised separately from goodwill because they did
not meet the recognition criteria for identified intangible
assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group:

In 2017, Sun Fung contributed HK$5,947,000 to
turnover and profit of HK$4,867,000 to the Group’s
results for the year. Wealthy Sound Group contributed
HK$8,864,000 to turnover and loss of HK$6,667,000 to
the Group’s results for the year.

Had these business combinations been effected
on 1 April 2016, Sun Fung would have contributed
HK$5,947,000 to turnover and profit of HK$4,746,000
to the Group’s results for the year; and Wealthy
Sound Group would have contributed HK$9,337,000
to turnover and loss of HK$5,096,000 to the Group’s
results for the year. This pro-forma information is for
illustration purposes and should not be viewed as an
indication of the result of operations that would have
occurred if the acquisition had been completed on 1
April 2016.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %A :ERESN - LB ITHIR)

33 Changes in ownership interest in a
subsidiary without change of control

On 14 September 2016, Sau San Tong Holdings Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed 25%
of the issued shares of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Sau
San Tong Investment Holdings Limited (“SSTIHL"), for
a consideration with a fair value of HK$9,254,000 to an
independent third party (“SSTIHL Purchaser”). The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in SSTIHL as at the
date of disposal was a deficit of HK$2,309,000. As a result,
the Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$2,309,000 and an increase in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$11,563,000. The effect of
changes in ownership interest in SSTIHL is summarised as
follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest disposed & FF# Ak HE 28 2 BRE{E
MIEERE R E AFTWERREZ
NEH )

Fair value of consideration received from holders of
non-controlling interests (note)

Excess of consideration paid recognised in other
reserve within equity HE

Note: The consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issue by the
SSTIHL Purchaser, whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, of 115,680,000 shares at market price of HK$0.10
per share. On 14 September 2016, the quoted market price was
HK$0.08 per share.

33 ZFIEAESE . —BHELQ

RAERREERSE

R-ZZ—XR"EFNLA+TIA - KARZEH
BA 7 Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. A —
EBUE=F([EFEREERET )N

NFEE254,000F L2 RELELE
MEBAREFEREZERERAR([{EH
BIRETER])Z225% B HTRG - B H
BREERNAEE B IEERER 2R
E{E A E 42,309,000 7T © Bt © A&
B R IE T B i 2R 4> 2,309,000 78 7T K.
AR EHEA A FEAL R8I0 11,563,000
BT EHEREBIERERREZ T
T

HK$’000
FET
2,309

9,254

BhR s A EEERDNREZ

11,5663

HieF - REBESEREALBRES (ERMGIKER
Ff GEM L 77 ) B % % % 77 115,680,000 f%
TMEASROIOEBTLZBMHIM -KR=F
%ﬁiﬂﬁ+m5vm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaw
BIL °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F %A RHI -

34 Acquisition of assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Kowloon West Properties
Development Limited (“KW Properties”)

On 20 November 2017, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in KW Properties. KW Properties is
principally engaged in property investment and its major
asset is a residential property in Hong Kong classified
as land and buildings.

In the opinion of management, the acquisition is in
substance an acquisition of the land and buildings,
rather than a business acquisition and therefore is
excluded from the scope of HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”. As such, the acquisition was not
disclosed as a business combination in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 3.

Acquisition of Achieve Plus

On 18 January 2017, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in Achieve Plus.

Achieve Plus is principally engaged in property
investment and its major asset is an office property in
Hong Kong classified as an investment property.

In the opinion of management, the acquisition is in
substance an acquisition of the investment property,
rather than a business acquisition and therefore is
excluded from the scope of HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”. As such, the acquisition was not
disclosed as a business combination in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 385 - HUETIIR)
34 Acquisition of assets through acquisition 34 EBWEKEATWE

of subsidiaries (Continued) BE#)

(c) The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through (c) RIWBBEHE ZEBWEBEEMKE
the acquisitions as at the dates of acquisition is as ZEENFIAEZEBNT :
follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

KW Achieve

Properties Plus

KW

Properties KN

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment M - HEER N AR 15,812 —

Investment property wEME - 8,001
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFIE - me RHEMER

receivables IR 336 5

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFEY 80 —

Other payables and accrued charges H A RIE M ERTE A (228) -

Shareholder’s loan BERER (11,531) (4,924)

Current tax payable BV AR FE S 77 18 - (6)

4,469 3,076

Assignment of a shareholder’s loan EE-—EREZER 11,531 4,924

Total consideration satisfied by cash ReS @B rRE 16,000 8,000
Net cash outflow arising on the W BE A 2 TR HH 58

acquisitions:
Cash consideration paid BENMEERE 16,000 8,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents Ji - FTBEEIR S MRS
acquired EEM (80) -
15,920 8,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk SA £ » A THIR)

35 Material related party transactions and 35 EAAEALTREREER
balances
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REETEEEABE MG (B1EH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s HTHBEEEN TFARABEE 2R
directors as disclosed in note 7 and senior BENENFEREEAB ZIE)M
management, is as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\E B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Directors E=E
Directors’ fee B0 440 398
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 288 R HALIEF 3,468 3,480
Contributions to defined contribution FOEMBURIRET B 2 X
retirement plan 46 36
3,954 3,914
Senior management EREEAR
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 3288 & H b 1@ 5 3,600 3,600
Contributions to defined contribution FEMBURIRET B 2 HE
retirement plan 18 18
3,618 3,618
7,572 7,532
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note Hif@sEet Al B Ik A J(R M s
5(b). 5(b)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

35 Material related party transactions and 35 EABEALIRZRERRE)

balances (Continued)
(b) Other related party transactions (b)
In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned

in notes 19 and 21, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions during the

year:

Sales of goods to a holder of non- M—EIEERERS B AEE
controlling interest Em

Interest on loan due to a director BRN—R2EZBFERZHE

Sales of goods to a holder of non-controlling interest
were made at similar terms as the Group grants to
other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in notes 18 and 21.

HttBEEALRS

B B SE19 K21 Pl 2 B & & HF
h e ARERFRBETATERX
BEALRS

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
22,016 34,058

- 100

M- BRI AREER
TR EEE T MBS 2 B
el -

MEE AT 2 EBBR T BARRRE R
rE18 2115 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&2 &:ERESN - 35 LAETTHIR)
36 Financial information of the Company 36
(@) Statement of financial position
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RAZRE
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMS BT B A R FR IR
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIR - e REME
receivables KIE
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY
Current liabilities REBAE

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Other liabilities

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

JREASH B /B8 2~ Rk 3R

Hib e FR N ERT & A
BN —REEHA
HtbBE

BEEFH

BEXKRfRE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE

KRR BER

(a) #BMRRE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4 4
545,710 564,699

i
1,309 13,546
93 211
547,112 578,456
4,732 4,656
2,870 1,579
1,046 21,046
— 19,237
8,648 46,518
538,464 531,938
538,468 531,942
109,268 109,268
429,200 422,674
538,468 531,942




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

36 Financial information of the Company

(Continued)

(b)

Movements in components of equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

components of equity during the year are as follows:

At 1 April 2016

Changes in equity for 2017:

Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year

Redemption of convertiole notes

Expiration of share options

Issue of shares

Share Issue expenses

At 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2017

Changes in equity for 2018:

Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year

Expiration of other liabilties

At 31 March 2018

R=8-AERA-B

TR-tEZRERD:
ERERREAEREE

RET4RZE
EREER

%fikin

BUESTT
RZB-t¥zAzt-8
R-%-tERA-A

TR N\F2RERE:
EhERRREGRER

EfRBER

RZg-N§zR=1-B

No
i3

Iy

%
4
27l
21l

%

VAN
W g

36 A EBBEER#)

B SRR AL

(b) EEBDIZ2EH
RARFEE AR R 2 BB # 25 50 5 &
BZFBOT
Share-based  Convertible
Share Share payment notes Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve Teserve losses equity
& RiERE  BOARRE TRRZERE A ZithR EniE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000
i Tér TET i 7ér i i
36,422 499,097 4170 1214 (16,444) (268,341) 236,118
- - - - - (56,530) (56,530)
- - - 1,214 - 1214 -
- - (1.949) - - 1918 -
72846 291,382 - - - - 34,228
- (11,874 - - - - (11,874
109,268 778,605 2222 - (16,444) (341,709) 531,942
109,268 718,605 222 - (16,444) (341,709) 531,942
- - - - - (13474 (13474
- - - - 16,444 3,666 20,000
109,268 778,605 2222 - - (351,627) 538,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk SA £ » A THIR)

37 Subsidiaries’ information 37 FBARESR

At 31 March 2018, the Company had direct or indirect RIE—N\F=ZA=1+—H ARAEE
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private SEENTIHB AR (AFLABRAR
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside MR B ABAINKL MR - BIAEE
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as HEBLABRARABMMRZ EEH
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares BOHEAER BRI EFHEIN AFER®D
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of HAALEBER ZEWBARNRZZE—N
these subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are set out below: FZA=+—HZFBEOT :

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREERRLLA

Place of Particulars of issued

Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity

AEH EEBE  DRORBERAGHE B BE  IEER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:

REBELRSHMAL -

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 1000 RERAE 1 ZT2Ri REBR

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 1REREE 1 ETLRIA REZK

Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 1REREE 1 FT L RIA RERRK

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 100REREE 1 ET LR RERR

Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
B 10REREE I ZTLRA RERK

Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment in securities and investment holding
B 10REREE 1 ZTZRA RERESRIREER

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
B 100RBREE 1 ZT2 KA fmex

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
(3 100RERAE 1 ET LR REER

Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
&% 10REREE 1 ZTLRA fEex

L'institut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive

de beauté (en France) a Limited

&% 100REHRAE1ZT2RIA gEex

BIML Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Bk 1REREE 1 ZT2RA REERK

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

37 MBATRER (&)

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
BERERERENLS
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
LAER BEME  CRORBRRARE B B IZER
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REERZASHIAT - (£)
Gold Platform Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Y 10REREE ZTLRA RERR
Creative Time Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
Bk 100 REREEET2 RN RESK
Brillant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
B 1REREE1ETLRA RESK
Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
Bk 100REREE 1 Z TR REEERARY
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited (*SST(SH)'") Hong Kong 1,000 shares of USS1 each - 50%  Investment holding
(note (i) (Wt () \
Bk 1,000 REREE 1 FT2 KR RESK
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou) ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each - 51%  Investment holding
Limited (‘SST(HZ)')
Bh 100 REREEET2RA RERK
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each - 50% Inactive
(‘SST(SHDY') (note (i) (Arz2 ()
5 10REREE 1 ZTZRA grex
Sau San Tong (Beiing) Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
% 100REREE 1 ZTLRIA Rk
Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each - 100%  Investment holding
Bh 100RERAE 1 ZTLRA RARR
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each - 51%  Investment holding
Limited (SST(SZ)’)
BA 100RERAE 1 ZTLRA RARKR
Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each - 100%  Investment holding
Bk 1REREE 1 XT2RA RERK
Silver Ally International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Property holding
RBARERLR 7 1REREE1ZTRA RENE
Siver Shore Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
Bk 1REREE 1 ZT R RAZR
Win Ease (BVI) Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment in securities
“Win Ease Limited")
REERAT Bk 1REREE1ZT R BHRE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

37 MBATRER (&)

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
EREERELLA
Place of  Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
AER EEBY  CRORBERAHE E# B IEXH
Incorporated in the United States of America
("USA"):
REFEL7EZ8)) AT -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific USA 1 share of US1 each 100% - Inactive
Research Institute Limited X8 1REREA1ETRA Emez
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REBAMAT -
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - Inactive
ERABRERAT (35 1RE&H Erex
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Sale of health and beauty products and
investment holding
BAEERAT 35 10,000 %4 HERERZREQRREARK
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Inactive
EIERRBRARAT (3 100k Emex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 18,750 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute Limited
EIEEEENRBERREPLERAT Bk 18,760 KR (3 REXRGERE
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (TST) Limited
EIEREXRNRBURREDO (AR ERAT A 10,000 %45 RUEZARERRY
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited
BAERRERRRIRRET O (HEL)ERAA BE 100k REXAREBRE
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
BHEERERAA Bk 100 ikt REEELHRY
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of advertising agency services
B REREERAT [ 10,000 % RUEERERS
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
WARARRA Bk 1RRI RERK
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Inactive
SHAREHERAT Eik 100 gk

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 37 B ARER (&)
Proportion of effective
ownership interest
ERERRELLA
Place of ~ Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
AER EXBE  CRORBERAHE E# BE  IEER

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)

REEHMNL  (8)

SSTIHL Hong Kong 100 shares - 75%  Property holding

BRERERR B 100t RENE

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding

FRERAT 5 10,000 %4 REER

Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

XNEBERRA 7 1R REmR

Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100%  Inactive

ERERAT “ 2R 03 fEex

Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

2ERERAR 7 1R RERK

BUML Hong Kong 100 shares - 80%  Provision of a proprietary internet platform
ZBAE 3 100k to promote and sell simming beauty and

health related services and products and
investment holding

RESARETS  NEERMESRZARR
RRE RBRER - ARRERR

Starry Crystal Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

RERRAT B 1% REEK

Wide Duo Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 80%  Inactive

LERRAA B 15Ri g%

Trilion Well International Finance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
EHERHARAR B 1BR&I REER

/ichieve Plus Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Property investment

M j 1K1 VESE

Sun Fung Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of money lending services
il ; 10,000t REHERHE

I Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
ERFASERRLT ; 10,000 R {7 RUEFARGERE

KW Properties (note (ij) Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Property investment

KW Properties (4751} Bk 1}1 nERE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 EZKRER AT
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37 MBATRER (&)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

ERERERLNLA
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
LA BEME  ERORMREAHE EE Bk  IZER
Incorporated in Macau:
REFTEma
Sau San Tong Macau Limited Macau Registered capital of MOP25,000 - 96%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
52 (29 BRAT i FHE 225,000 2794 REXARHERY
Incorporated in the PRC:
Vel ave
EE-TRERBRAA( LE-TE") The PRC Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and simming services
(note i) (1) t HRAR150,000%T REZEREERK
ARAREERRAG(RAAL) The PRC  Registered capital of US$5,000,000 - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products
ket HRALS5,000,0005 PRHEIHEERER
TERIRH (I ERAR( -EER) The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
hE B 3,500,000 37 REEAREEES
~EEERLE(MMBRAT(—EEMM)  ThePRC  Registered capital of HKS3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
HE HRAR3,500,000 57T REZAREBRE
RREXAHRALRERA The PRC  Registered capital of HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
hE FHE 1,000,000 REZARGERE
EEE( LR P RERANERAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
and investment holding
e HERAR6,000,0007 REEERARBERITERR
LBEFEERERAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of franchise services
i HRERARES5000007 REMBA RS
HAREES(LB)ARAA The PRC  Registered capital of US$200,000 - 100%  Inactive
i FHEZ 200,000 %7 grex
ERRREN(LE)ERAA The PRC  Registered capital of US$500,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
EF FHE 500,000 %7 REEEREERK
EXEAEH( D8RR The PRC  Registered capital of US$300,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services
HE FHHEA300,000% T RUSARBERS
BN R ERENERLA ThePRC  Registered capital of RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
RE M EARARE 20,000,000 Rid
EEERHER (LR BRAT The PRC  Registered capital of US$150,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services and
investment holding
HE HBER150,000% T REEARYEREN RRERR
EHBEEAYHL R ERAF The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100% Inactive
hE AR AR 5000007 Rk

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5E#ZKRER AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LAY - HABTHIR)

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(i

Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),
SST(SH) and E&—5%F75, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SST(SH),
the directors concluded that the Group has dominant power to
direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on the basis
of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of respective
companies because of contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of respective companies.

The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 March
2018 (see note 34).

37 MBATRER (&)

0)

(if)

BENEE{EH A SST(SHD) + SST(SH) &
EB—EBSSTSHZ2EWERR)Z
50% FEARE - MERPEAR AT HMRE
ZENRY  MEERARNEEHBEEE
BN ARAEEHEEARESSIEH
%g%a‘%%EESST(SHD)&SST(SH)UEEE
JEED ©

B ARRBE _T-N\F=A=+—
B R (R 34) o
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37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

e I ERAR MR

37 WEATER

TR EEASBREAEAIFERELS
(TFFfEREes ) 2B AR ZER - TX
Z 5 2 BB E R ST ] 2 R K 35 AT
ZEE e

2018
“E-N\%F
SST(SH) SST(SZ)  SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary, subsidiary,
tE-EB —EB8RY —EE8HM
SST(SH) SST(SZ)  SST(HZ)
SSTIHL RH RH RH
BUML BEE HEBAA WEAR  HEAR
XBEAE REER LtE-TE RHGHAL -8RI —-EBAM
NCI percentage FERERANL 20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 420 45,958 470 3,042 829 =
Current assets MEEE 11,308 1,827 51,027 430,883 80,638 3,799
Current liabilities mEEE (10,289)  (58,385)  (65,590) (278,552)  (118,867) (27,207
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - = (4,164) = = -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 1,439 (10,600)  (18,257) 155,373 (37,400) (28,408
Carrying amount of NCI R REE 288 (2,650) (9,129) 72,237 (18,326)  (11,470)
Revenue Uk - — — 2,422,133 9,113 —
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/EF (2,083) (909) (3,636) 33,468 (2,434) (155)
Total comprehensive income/ 2k
(loss) (B8 - - 1,811 13,402 (1,034) (754)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI PEEFERER 2
(E#8),/BH (406) (227 (1,819) 16,400 (1,193) (76)
Cash flows from operating RELEEEH A
activities, net e FE (81) (93) (39) (45,842 2,059 —
Cash flows from investing KERBEH RS
activities, net wE - EE - - - (635) (19) =
Cash flows from financing REMETE B
activities, net mE 8 - - = 21,376 = =
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

37 MBATRER (&)

37 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

2017
T+ F
SST(SH) SST(SZ)  SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
SSTIHL  subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
(note) LE—TEH —EBFRI —EBmM
5% SSTSH R SST(SZ) % SST(HZ) K
BUML &R HMBAF HBLRA ERBAHE
EJyN (i) LEB—T6 RHAL —TERI —EBHRM
NCI percentage FERERED 20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FETL FETL FETL FETL FETL FETL
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,954 47 464 567 2,652 3,670 -
Current assets MEEE 11,294 1,230 48,261 353,730 57,640 3,649
Current liabilities mEEE (9,776)  (58,385)  (61,499)  (247,879)  (95,242) (26,148
Non-current liabilities EE=NE - - (3,761) - - -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AE)FE 3,472 (9,691)  (16,432) 108,503 (33,932) (22,499
Carrying amount of NCI R
FEE 694 (2,423) (8,215) 50,024 (16,626)  (11,025)
Revenue e - - 336 2,024,348 11,642 -
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EB),/BH (1,846) (455) (293) 27,919 (3,276) 86
Total comprehensive m(ER),/ s
(loss)/income kS - - (1,224) (6,641) 399 461
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI AREEFERER
Z(B8B),/&H (370) (114) (146) 13,681 (1,604) 42
Dividends paid to NCI B ERRER
B - - - 8,453 - -
Cash flows from operating RELEEE
activities, net HERE  F8 659 (301) 206 43,961 (557) -
Cash flows from investing REZRBESZ
activities, net BeRE 38 (711) - (384) (663) 545 -
Cash flows from financing RERMELE
activities, net BeRE  F8 - - - 35,216 - -

Note: The results and cash flow information for the year ended 31 March
2017 presented above represented the results and cash flows
from 14 September 2016 (date of partial disposal of SSTIHL) to 31

March 2017.

Bz A 2R E—E—+FE=A=+—H1
EEYRER B RBHER HE T
—REAATIE (RS S SRR
ERERE -
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38

39

[

BEAETHN

7

Events after the reporting period

Save as disclosed in notes 11 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have significant
events after the reporting period.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(@) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charge for the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
Annual Report 2017/18 F£EHE
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EHRHREEE

BRGae M ERRME 1T RIS ES
Sh s REER2HMEMBEAETIR -

St il &l

EERAAEESHBEBRAZHE
et RABE RSB R R G E %
BERRNEATE - BHGTBRERAE
EEAE T2 EEEL G RA
B - BAASESTECR BB EHE
BT o

(a) WEREE

AEBEEBMGTRKMEERETE
ME BELRBREBELEE 2
AR ERFR AT EREEE
Ao efhEt iR E R AL 2
ME BELRELEBETLEERR
ERFHZBELRIEL > AIRE
BRI RE S F R EEAITE
BHRRzTHMELEAREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 Bz M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

39 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, investments in subsidiaries and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair
value less costs of disposal because quoted market
prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover
and operating costs.

Impairment losses on loans receivable, interest
receivables and trade and other receivables are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual borrower/
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

The carrying amounts of the above assets have been
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and related notes.

(BR5AEHIN - HLAETIIR)

39 EEHAEHR A #)

(b)

A

EEAIREARETYE  HBERR
B BREEE RHBRARZE
BENEEBELRERER  ABT
BEAWOEHE  JRESERA
FERLERAREREERE 2
BEE -  ARRFEEZTERE
RGTATRERF ER1S - MURE A ERE (AT
RNFEREERET - BEEREE
B BEELZEHMRSRENR
EHRE AHEXRBRKEREES
KA GEEFREFHERHE - &
SEER-VAEREREZENE
ERREBEBEERNESE  BE
BAB KA IR REEL G LY
BEBNMEERAFRBELTEA -

FEWER - ERFEARE S EK
R R E W E M RIB 2 R EEE T
RIEE = Hma BRE 5 AT R AT
Bl aF b (E ATl R - EFR
TESEIERA BRPZEER
BEWREERIELEEERE 2A
B o

iR EEBEZIRRSEEAFE

PR EEZFEEZRES P HR
AR NGB P RE -
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39 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
note 14.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

39 Accounting estimates and judgements 39 FEHHETRHE 2

(Continued)

(e) Fair value of financial assets under Level 3 (e) HF=FeMEEZATEINE
measurements
The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds is REMAMKRES 2 A FETERA
determined by using valuation techniques including HERNEE - PIE2EZNEIRIE
reference to other instruments that are substantially EmAoMEHEFEEXEEMK
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option HMHERIZTHE - :ZEEL 28 AR
pricing model. The inputs to these models are taken AlEER B A ER MG - HEEFE A
from observable markets where possible, but where A 178 - BIMEE A FEREEL
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in —EREZHE -

establishing fair value.

40 Possible impact of amendments, new 40 BE=-ZFE—N\F=A=+—H
standards and interpretations issued but ItFEEEMERRERZIE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 AR HEARBREURELE
March 2018 =4
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial HEXGEMKHRERTERR 895
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of MASEEBLHREEE_T—\F=A
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective Z T HLEFEERERARZEREH
for the year ended 31 March 2018 and which have not been ERERIW AN 2B FIEFT AR %R
adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These EFREENT AR EAEE B FIE

include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to Investment property’ BB ER BEmE
HKAS 40 5 405% (IBFT )

Amendments to Share-based payment: Classification ERVERELER RO KO A
HKFRS 2 and measurement of share-based F2RUBEIAR) RRHzHEREF

payment transactions’ &'

Annual improvements HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in BERMBWEEL BEMB®REEL
to HKFRSs 2014 other entities — Clarification of the —E—NFE FI2HBEEREAM
—2016 cycle scope of the standard’ TE-RFRE HRoEZ — B

7 FE M A E

HKFRS 15 and Revenue from contracts with customer EEUBHEER BEFPFALHIKRARSE
amendments to and clarifications to HKFRS 15' FE15EREFE ABUBRSENSE
HKFRS 15 B M s A Al 1558 2 %8

ERELACCHEN
HKFRS 16 Leases® EREMBREEL HE?
E165%
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ EBYERELR ST A
FIW
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments® BE(HBRHBSRE FAEREBERE T
REZEe)—- ®EHE°
E 235

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 EZKRER AT
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new 40 BE-_ZE—N\F=H=+—H

208

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of
the new requirements on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are as follows:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kk SA LRI - B THIR)

40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset.
If a debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
effective interest, impairments and gains/losses on
disposal will be recognised in profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model.
The only exception is if the equity security is
not held for trading and the entity irrevocably
elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI
then only dividend income on that security will
be recognised in other comprehensive income
without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

40 BE-ZE-N\F=ZA=+—H
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the
fair value change of a financial liability designated as
FVPTL that is attributable to changes of that financial
liability’s own credit risk to be recognised in other
comprehensive income (without reclassification to
profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is required to
determine the extent of the impact.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result
in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s
trade receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables
and other financial assets. However, a more detailed
analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for

recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS

15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,

Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods

and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing the

impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
has identified the following areas which are likely to be

effected:

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 2(z). Currently, revenue arising from the
provision of services is recognised over time, whereas
revenue from the sale of goods is generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed
to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations
in which control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-
reward approach to the contract-by-contract
transfer-of-control approach, it is possible that the
point in time when revenue is recognised may be
earlier or later than under the current accounting
policy. However, further analysis is required to
determine whether this change in accounting
policy may have a material impact on the amounts
reported in any given financial reporting period.
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component, regardless
of whether the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently
not common in the Group’s arrangements with its
customers. Currently, the Group does not apply such a
policy when payments are received in advance.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and
makes and adjustment against revenue and cost of
sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement to
recognise separately a return asset for the products
expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new 40 BE-_ZE—N\F=H=+—H

214

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(m), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases
as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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40 Possible impact of amendments, new 40 BE=-FE—NE=A=+—H

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 30(b), at 31 March 2018 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to HK$59,400,000 for properties, the
majority of which is payable between 1 and 5 years after the
reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore need
to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.
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